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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder, Supervisory Board, Board of Directors and Audit Committee of SLOVNAFT, a.s.:

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SLOVNAFT, a.s. (the Company), which comprise the
separate statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, separate statement of comprehensive
income, separate statement of changes in equity and separate statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by EU ("IFRS EU").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (*ISAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Act on Statutory Audit No 423/2015 Coll. and on amendments to the Act on Accounting No
431/2002 Coll., as amended by later legislation (“the Act on Statutory Audit’) related to ethics, including
Auditor's Code of Ethics, that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled
other requirements of these provisions related to ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS EU, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenls

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
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aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements including the
presented information as well as whether the financial statements captures the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that leads to their fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Report on Information Disclosed in the Annual Report

Management is responsible for the information disclosed in the annual report, prepared based on
requirements of the Act on Accounting No 431/2002 Coll., as amended by later legislation (“the Act on
Accounting”). Our opinion on the financial statements expressed above does not apply to other
information contained in the annual report.

In connection with audit of the financial statements it is our responsibility to understand the information
disclosed in the annual report and to consider whether such information is not materially inconsistent
with audited financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit of the financial statements, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We considered whether the Company's annual report contains information, disclosure of which is
required by the Act on Accounting.
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Based on procedures performed during the audit of financial statements, in our opinion:

- Information disclosed in the annual report prepared for 2021 is consistent with the financial
statements for the relevant year,

- The annual report contains information based on the Act on Accounting.

Additionally, based on our understanding of the Company and its situation, obtained in the audit of the
financial statements, we are required to disclose whether material misstatements were identified in the
annual report, which we received prior to the date of issue of this auditor's report. In this regard, there
are no findings which we should disclose.

22 March 2022
Bratislava, Slovak Republic

Ernst & Young Slovakia, spol. s r.o.
SKAU Licence No. 257

0_—

Ing. Peter Uram-Hri$o, statutory auditor
SKAU Licence No. 996
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Oszkar Vilagi ©~ Marek Senkovic
Chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors




SLOVNAFT, a.s.
Separate financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
for the year ended 31 December 2021

General information

SLOVNAFT, a.s. ("SLOVNAFT or “the Company”) was registered in Slovakia as a joint stock company on 1 May
1992. Prior to that date it was a state owned enterprise. The Company was set up in accordance with Slovak
regulations. The Company had its primary listing on the Brafislava Stock Exchange. The Bratislava Stock
Exchange terminated trading of Company's shares on the regulated market on 20 December 2019 based on
request of the Company. The last trading day of the shares was 23 December 2019. The Company became a
private joint stock company on 27 December 2019.

The principal activities of the Company are the processing of crude oil and the distribution and sale of refined
products.

The Company’s registered address and registration numbers are:
SIL.OVNAFT, a.s.

Vicie hrdlo 1

824 12 Bratislava

Slovak Republic

Registration number: 31 322 832

Tax registration number: 2020372640

Legal Entity ldentifier (L.EI): 213800SQ8HA3IZPO1G03

Since April 2003 the major shareholder of the Company is MOL Nyrt., incorporated and domiciled in Hungary.
The Company is not partner with unlimited fiability in any company.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 2,206 employees (31 December 2020: 2,290). Average calculated
number of employees as at 31 December 2021 was 2,224 (31 December 2020: 2,281), 127 of which were
management (31 December 2020: 126 managers).

Authorization and statement of compliance

These separate financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on
22 March 2022.

The separate financial statements of the Company for the previous period were approved by the Annual General
Meefing of the Company held on 17 June 2021.

These separate financial statements are placed at the Company’s registered address, at the Register of financial
statements, and at the Commercial Register of District Court in Bratislava |, Zahradnicka 10, 812 44 Bratisiava,

These separate financial statements have been prepared as ordinary separate financial statements according to
Section 17 (6) of the Slovak Accounting Act No. 431/2002 Coll. as later amended.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemnational Financia! Reporting Standards
(IFRS") and all applicabie IFRS that have been adopted by the EU. IFRS comprise standards and interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC").

With effect from 1 January 2006, the change in the Slovak Accounting Act requires the Company to prepate its
financial statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union ("EU"). At this time, due to the
endorsement process of the EU, there is no difference between the IFRS poticies applied by the Company and
those adopted by the EU.



SLOVNAFT, a.s.

Separate statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2021

in € thousands Notes 2021 2020
Net revenue 2 4,067,463 2,700,445
Other operating income 3 11,268 23,501
Total operating income 4,078,731 2,723,946
Raw materials and consumables used (3,252,121)  (2,140.817)
Personngl expenses 4 {110,514) {103,088)
Depreciation, depletion, amortization and impairment (178,275) (189,094}
Value of services used 5 (222,058) (209,084)
Other operaling expenses 6 {187,642} (134,470}
Change in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 120,619 {57.327)
Work performed by the enterprise and capitalized 1,332 1,841
Total operating expenses (3,828,659) (2,832,039)
Profiti(loss) from operations 250,072 (108,093)
Finance revenues 7 73,381 9,068
Finance expenses 7 {20,488) (3,033)
Finance revenues/{expenses}, net 52,893 6,035
Profit/{ioss) before tax 302,965 (102,058)
Income tax expense 8 {50,201) 20,172
Profiti{ioss) for the period 252,764 (81,886)
Other comprehensive income:

Actuarial gains/{losses) on defined benefit pension plans 20 1,773 (26)
Income tax retating to items that will not be reclassified to profit/(foss) 8 (372) ]
“Total items that will not be reclassified to profit/(loss) 1,401 {21}
Other comprehensive income for the period 1,401 (21
Total comprehensive income for the period 254,165 {81,907)
Basic/diluted earnings/{loss) per share (€} 25 12.26 (3.97)

The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statemenis. 2



SLOVNAFT, a.s.
Separate statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021

in € thousands Notes 2021 2020
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 9.1 23,705 20,745
Property, plant and equipment 8.2 1,408,432 1,483,526
Investments in subsidiaries 10 56,527 46,027
Investments in associated companies 14 71,428 71,428
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 2,370 2,370
Other non-current assets 12 1,856 1,774
Total non-current assets 1,562,318 1,625,870
Current assets

Inventories 13 399,197 256,375
Trade recetvables 14 430,961 221,972
Other curreni assets 15 282,150 290,310
Cash and cash equivalents 16 40,731 26,238
Total current assets 1,153,039 794,895
Assets classified as heid for sale 17 19,380 .
TOTAL ASSETS 2,734,737 2,420,765
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital 18.1 684,758 684,758
Share premium 121,118 121,118
Retained gamings 18.2 885,327 701,162
Other components of equity 18.3 2,330 2,330
Total equity 1,693,534 1,509,369
Non-current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion 181 66,278 55,315
Provigions 20 61,245 59,121
Deferred tax labilities 8 63,216 62,875
_Other non-current fiabilities 21 12,973 14,020
Total non-current liabilities 203,712 191,331
Current liabilities

Trade payables and other current liahilifies 22 711,588 460,372
Provisions 20 64,117 30,735
Shori-term debt 18.2 - 215,304
Current portion of long-term debt 49.1 14,556 13,654
Income tax payable 50,230 -
Total current liabilities 837.4M 720,065
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,734,737 2,420,765

The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statements.



SLOVNAFT, a.s.

Separate statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2021
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1 January 2020 684,758 121,119 783,069 2,330 1,591,276
Profit/{loss) for the period - - (81,886) - (81,886)
Other comprehensive income for the period ~ - - 21 {(Z21)
Total comprehensive income for the
period . - (81,5886) {21) (81,967}
Reciassification of actuarial gains/{losses) on
defined benefif pension plans - - (21} 21 -
31 December 2020 684,758 121,119 701,162 2,330 1,509,369
Profiti{loss) for the period - - 252,764 - 252,764
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - 1,401 1,401
Total comprehensive income for the
pericd “ - 252,764 1,401 254,165
Dividends {Note 18.2} - - {70,000) - {70,000)
Reclassification of actuarial gains/(losses) on
_defined benefit pension pians - - 1,401 {1,401) -
31 December 2021 684,758 121,119 885,327 2,330 1,693,534
The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statements. 4



SLOVNAFT, a.s.
Separate statement of cash flows for the vear ended 31 December 2021

in € thousands Notes 2021 2020

Profitf(loss) before tax 302,965 {102,058)

Adjustments to reconcile profit/{loss) before tax to net cash provided by
operating activities

Depreciation, depletion, amortization and impatrment 178,275 189,094

Amortization of government grants 3 (811) (836)
Write-down/(reversai of write-down) of inventories, net 2,300 (3,414)
Increasef{decrease) in provisions, net 34,278 7.526

(Profitfloss from the sale of intangible asseis and property, plant

and gquipment 3 (420} (123}
Write-off of receivables andg addition/{reversal) of impairment, net - 288

Write-off of liabilities {122) (68)
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss on receivables and payables 7 15,732 (4.677)

impairment of financial assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income - 10

interest revenue 7 (673) (336)
Interest expense on borrowings 7 2,013 1,623

Net foreign exchange (gain)ioss on cash and cash equivalents 7 206 (50)
Cther finance (profit)/loss, net 685 (3,008)
Dividends received 7 (72,705} (981)
Book value of surrendered emission quotas 27,053 17,733

Other non-cash items {574) 73

Operating cash flow before changes in working capital 488,902 100,699

{Increase)/decrease in inventories (145,121) 42,764

(Increase)decrease in irade receivables (204,066) 96,928

(Increase)decrease in other assets (60,211) {4,039)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 220,589 (167,598)
Increasel(decrease) in other liabilifies 23,553 40,765

Corporate income fax (paid)/returned (3) 19,817

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities B 322,943 99,334

Payments for intangible assets and property, plant and equipment {128,969) (143,873)
Proceads from disposal of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 467 137

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income - 29

Acquisition of subsidiaries 10 (10,500) (375)
Long-term loans granted {100) (4,790}
Long-term loans repaid 1,800 6,478

Short-term loans {granted)/repaid, net 57,979 (217,823)
interest received 1,211 237

Ofther finance income 3 25

Dividends received and income from the decrease of share capital of the

associated companies 73,416 760

Net cash provided by/{used in} investing activities ] (4,693) {359,195)
Proceeds from/(repayments of) short-term bank borrowings, net 19.3 {213,000} 203,000

Repayments of long-term non-bank borrowings 19.3 (14,634} {13,580)
Proceeds/(payments) from derivative transactions, net (669) 3,000

Interest paid (2,057) (1,493}
Other finance costs {13} {19)
Dividends paid fo shareholders (70,210) (13)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities ) {300,583) 190,895

Increasel(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17,667 {68,966}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 16 23,870 92,886

Effacts of exchange rate changes 7 (806) 50

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 16 40,731 23,970

o

The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statements.



SLOVNAFT, a.s.
Notes to the separate financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2021

1 Accounting information, policies and significant estimates

1.1 Basis of preparation

These separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS issued and effective on
31 December 2021.

For the purpose of the application of the historical cost convention, the financial statemenits treat the Company as
having come into existence on 1 May 1992, at the carrying values of assets and liabilities determined at that date,
subject to the IFRS adjustments.

The financial statements were prepared using the going concern assumption that the Company will continue its
operations for the foreseeable future.

The prepatation of the financial statements in conformity with tFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the Notes thereto. Although these estimates are
based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, the actual results may differ from
those estimations.

The financial year is the same as the calendar year.
The separate financial statements are presented in thousands of Euro.
1.2 Information on consoclidated group

The Company applied the exemption from the obligation to prepare consolidated financial statements according
to Section 22 (8) and (9) of the Slovak Accounting Act No. 431/2002 Coll. as later amended, as the parent
company MOL Nyrt. prepares consolidated financial statements for the largest group of companies under EU law,
which also includes the financial statements of the Company and the financial statements of all its subsidiaries.

MOL Nyrt., Oktdber huszonharmadika u. 18, 1117 Budapest, Hungary, prepares the Group's consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements are available directly at the registered address of the
company stated above.

1.3 Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those applied in the separate financial statements at
31 December 2020.

The Company has adopted the following amendments to IFRS during the accounting period:

e IFRS4 Insurance Contracts - Amendment regarding issues in the context of the IBOR reform - Phase 2

e IFRS7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Amendment regarding issues in the context of the IBOR reform
- Phase 2

o IERSO  Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement - Amendment regarding pre-replacement
issues in the context of the IBOR reform - Phase 2

e IFRS 16 Leases - Amendment fo provide lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-
related rent concession is a lease modification

e IFRS 16 Leases - Amendment regarding issues in the context of the IBOR reform - Phase 2

IAS 30 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Amendment regarding pre-replacement

igsues in the context of the IBOR reform - Phase 2

L

Appilication of these amendments to standards did not have any impact on the financial statements of the
Company.

The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statements. 6



SLOVNAFT, a.s.
Notes to the separate financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2021

1.4 Issued but not yet effective International Financial Reporting Standards

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the following new and amended Standards were in issue
but not yet effective:

o IFRS3 Business Combinations - Amendments updating a reference to the Conceptual Framework
{effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022)

o IFRS4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments regarding the deferral of IFRS 9 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023)

e IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
this standard has not been approved by EU yet)

e« IFRS 16 Leases - Amendment to extend an exemption provided to lessees from assessing whether a
COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification {effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2021}

s IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023)

« IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts - Amendments regarding the initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, this amendment has not been approved
by EU yet)

e |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the classification of liabilities
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, this amendment has not been
approved by EU yet)

e IAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the disclosure of accounting policies
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, this amendment has not been
approved by EU yet)

¢ IASS Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - Amendments regarding the
definition of accounting estimates (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023, this amendment has not been approved by EU yet)

e IAS12  Income Taxes - Amendments regarding deferred tax on leases and decommissioning obligations
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, this amendment has not been
approved by EU yet)

« IAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment - Amendments prohibiting a company from deducting from the cost
of property, plant and eguipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company
is preparing the asset for its intended use (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022)

s IAS37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Amendments regarding the cosis to

include when assessing whether a contract is onerous {effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022}
Annual Improvements 2018 - 2020 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022)

Application of the new and amended standards are not expected i0 have a material impact on the financial
statements of the Company.

1.5 Summary of significant ascounting policies

Presertation currency

Based on the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances, Euro (€) was determined as the
currency of Company’s presentation.

Foreign currency fransactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by applying to the foreign currency amount
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.
Exchange rate differences arising on the setflement of monetary items at rates different from those at which they
were initially recorded during the periods are recognized in the profitloss in the period in which they arise,
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the
rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Foreign exchange differences
both on trade receivables and payables and on horrowings are recorded as financial income or expense.

The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statements. 7



SLOVNAFT, a.s.
Motes to the separate financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2021

1.6 Significant accounting judgments and estimates

Critical judgments in applying the accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made certain judgments that have significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements (apart from those involving estimates, which are
dealt with below). These are detailed in the respective notes.

Sources of estimate uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the Notes thereto. Although these estimates are

based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may defer from these
estimates. These are detailed in the respective notes.

Significant impact on operation

Unlike in 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic had no significant impact on operations and financial results of 2021.

The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statements. 8



SLOVNAFT, a.s.
Notes to the separate financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2021

2  Net revenue

Accounting policies

IFRS 15 establishes a f‘ ve—step modei to account for revenue ar;smg from contracts w:rh cusiomers and reqwres
that revenug to be recogn.!zed at an amount that reﬂects the cons;deraz‘ron to WhiCh the Company expects ro be
entftled in exchange for transferrmg goods or. semces to_a customer o

Revenue is’ recognfzed when if is probable ihat the economic benefits assocrated w:th a z‘ransactron w.vll ﬁow to
the enterpnse and the amount of the revenug can be measured reﬂably Sales are recognrzed net of VAT, excise
tax and discounts when dehvery of goods or-rendering of the service has taken place and transfer. of contyol has
been’ completed ‘Retail revenues are recognized at-a pomt of sale ‘o the customer as cash or. credit card sale.
Revenues.from wholesale are recogmzed when the conrroi over the goods sofd ha ve passed fo. the buyer (e g
according fo th relevant fNCOTERMS)

‘_F?evenues arere ‘__gmzed net of the amount of exc:se'tax, except when the exc:se tax mcurred on a purchass of
assets or services Is nof recoverable from the taxation authonty, n whrch case, the excise fax is recogn;zsd as

part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense ifem, as applicable.”

Sales by product lines

in € thousands 2021 2020
Motor diesel 1,827,902 1,279,761
Motor gasoline 791,816 481,159
Other refined preducts 476,992 306,461
Piastics 764,971 438,576
Services 34,174 35,694
Other 171,608 157,794
Total o 4,067,463 2,700,445

Sales by geographical areas

in € thousands 2021 2020
Slovak Republic 1,270,291 1,145,418
Hungary 725,913 211,632
Czech Repubtic 712,088 464,072
Poland 462,468 223,535
Austria 298,020 293,868
Germany 204,339 162,521
[taly 91,117 64,629
Serhia 69,163 14,822
Romania 47,233 22,562
Croatia 36,240 18,524
Switzertand 31,380 16,079
United Kingdom 27,119 16,412
The Netherlands 22,617 10,025
Other 69,475 46,446
Total 4,067,463 2,700,445

The basis for atiributing revenues from external customers to individual countries is place of delivery.

Maijor customers

Net revenue arising from transactions with the parent company MOL Nyrt., including companies under its control,
amourts to €1,657,500 thousand which represents 40.8% of the fotal net revenue in 2021 (2020: €1,048,217
thousand, 38.8%).

Net revenue to any other single customer does not exceed 10% of the Company's total revenue. A group of
entities known to be under common control is considered a single customer for this purpose.

The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statements. 8



SLOVNAFT, a.s.
Notes to the separate financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financlal
Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2021

3 Other operating income

in € thousands 2021 2020
Government grants for compensation of expenses 8,321 8,009
Amortization of government grants 8141 836
Profit from the sale of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 420 123
Compensation of the cost of economic mobilization 209 6574
Compensation for damages 169 1,480
Penalties and late payment interest 61 27
Net gain from non-hedge commodity derivatives - 8,865
Compensation of the cost from other subjects - 2,580
Other 1,277 898
Total other operating income 11,268 23,501

4 Personnel expenses

in € thousands 3 2021 2020
Wages and salaries 72,423 67,167
Legal and voluntary retirement contributions 12,091 12,693
Public health insurance 7,601 7.673
Other social insurance 9,126 6,823
Other personnet expenses 7,784 7.709
Provision for retirement and jubilee benefits (Note 20} 1,033 1,305
Expenses of share-based payments 456 {182)
Total personnel expenses o 110,514 103,088

Share-based payments

Accounting polictes

Certem emp{oyees of thé Company recefve remuneratmn dependent on tha parent companys MOL Nyn‘ share
_prme

Lasl Cash -sez‘tled transactfons

: The cost b cash-serﬂed a‘ransact:ons is measurea‘ imt:a.fiy at fa:r vafue at the grant date usmg the bmomfa! mods!
This fair value is expensed-over the vesting period with recognition of a corresponding liability. The liability s

remeasured al each end of the reporting period up to and. mcludmg the seti!ement dare to fa;r vafue wrth changes
therein reécognized in the profithioss for the perlod.:

in € thousands 2021 2020
Restricted Share Plan 403 -
Absolute Share Value Based Remuneration 33 (158)
Relative Market Index Based Remuneration 20 (24)
Total cash-settled share-based payment expense ‘ 456 (182)

The share-based payments serve as the management's long-ferm incentives as an important part of their total
remuneration package. They ensure the interest of the top management of the Company in the long-term increase
of the MOL Nyrt. share price and so they serve the strategic inferest of the shareholders.

Restricted Share Plan for management

From 1 January 2021, the Company established new share-based payment remuneration plan to supersede
Absolute Share Value Based Remuneration and Relative Market Index Based Remuneration programmes:
Restricted Share Plan.

The Restricted Share Plan is a three-year incentive programme based on determined corporate and individual
performance targets with following characteristics:

e Program starts each year on a rolling scheme with a three-year vesting period.

e Target on corporate performance is based on the achievement of business plan for Clean CCS EBITDA.

- Payout rates are defined based on fulfilment of the corporate performance target and individual payout rate
which is based on an individual performance.

© Payments are due after the third year.,

The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statements. 10



SLOVNAFT, a.s.
Notes to the separate financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2021

Liabilities in respect of the Restricted Share Plan amounted to €403 thousand as at 31 December 2021 recorded
in other non-current liabilities.

Absolute Share Value Based Remuneration incentive for management

The Absolute Share Value Based Remuneration Plan is a call option to sell hypothetical MOL shares granted on
a past strike price, at a spot price and so realize profit from the difference between these prices. The incentive
has the following characteristics:

° it covers a four-year period starting annually, where periods are split into a two-year vesting period (it is not
possible to exercise Share Option) and two-year redeeming period. if unexercised, the Share Option lapses
after 31 December of the redeeming period.

° Its rate is defined by the quantity of units specified by the Company job category.

e  The allocation is linked to individual performance.

The incentive is paid in the exercising period according to the appropriate declaration of redemption. The value
of the incentive is the difference between the strike price and a selected spot price for each unit of the entittement.

In case the Annuai General Meeting of MOL Nyrt. decides on dividend payment after the grani date, the managers,
who are entitled to long-term incentives are eligible for a compensation in share equivalent when redeeming the
share entiiement. The compensation to one manager is the value equal to the dividend payment per share
multiplied by the share unit numbers the manager is entitled to. This compensation is paid at redemption.

Details of the share oplion rights granted during the period are as follows:

2021 2020
Weighted Weighted
Shares average average
in option exercise price Shares exercise price
rights per share in option rights per share
number number
of shares € of shares €
Qutstanding at the beginning of the period 320,351 8.27 261,087 8.44
Granted during the period 13,749 7.91 119,253 8.01
Forfeited during the period (19,736) 7.91 (7,189) 8.36
Exercised during the period - - {52,800} 4.57
Expired during the period {90,786) 8.42 - -
Qutstanding at the end of the peried 223,578 810 320,351 8.27
Exercisable at the end of the period 115,272 8.27 30,786 8.51

Liabilities in respect of the share-based payment plans amounted to €156 thousand as at 31 December 2021
(31 December 2020: €123 thousand), recorded in other non-current fiabilities and other current liabilities.

Eair value as at the end of the reporting period was calculated using the binomial option pricing model.

The inputs fo the mode! were as follows:

o 2021 2020
Weighted average exercise price per share {€) 8.10 8.27
Weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the
pericd (€) n.a. 5.91
Spot share price {(€) 6.83 6.00
Expected volatility based on historical data (%) 34.97 31.05
Expected dividend yield (%} 4,36 3.66
Estimated maturity (years) 1.48 2.07
Risk free interest rate for HUF (%) 5.4 0.84

Relative Market index Based Remuneration incentive for management

The Relative Market Index Based Remuneration Plan is a three-year program using the Comparative Share Price
methodology with following characteristics!

® Program starts each year on a rofling scheme with a three-year vesting period.

e Target is the development of MOL's share price compared to relevant and acknowledged regional and
industry specific indicators (the CETOP and the MSCI Emerging Markets Energy Index).

The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statements. 11



SLOVNAFT, a.s.
Notes to the separate financial statements prepared in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2021

e Basis of the evaluation is the average difference in MOL's year-on-year {12 months) share price performance
in comparison to the benchmark indices for three years.

o Payout rates are defined based on the over/funderperformance of MOL share price.
The rate of incentive is influenced by the individual short-term performance.

¢ Payments are due after the third year.

Liabilities in respect of the Relative Market Index Based Remuneration Plan program amounted to €20 thousand

as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: €3 thousand) recorded in other non-current liabilities and other
current liabilities.

5 Value of services used

in € thousands 2021 2020
Maintenance expenses 65,335 57,328
Transportation and storage expenses 62,277 63,515
Commission fees paid 40,775 39,381
Services relaled to administration 20,856 18,226
Fees for the use of the electricily system 13,048 12,868
Chemical analysis of products and raw materials 8,778 7,858
Fire protection expenses 4,535 4,754
Costs of cieaning machinery and eguipment 4,176 3,308
Traveling cost 413 204
Other 1,865 1,642
Total vajue of services used 222,058 209,084

6 Other operating expenses

in € thousands 2021 2020
Provision for greenhouse gas emission, net 56,728 25,775
Fees for ensuring the maintenance of emergenay stocks of crude oif and ol products 53,367 52.531
Net loss from non-hedge commodity derivatives 12,481 -
Technology expert fees 10,040 8,042
Accounting, advisory and similar services fees 7,682 7,763
Environmental provision {Note 20) 7.297 1.215
Cleaning costs and wastie disposal 5,667 5812
Taxes, duties and fees 5,576 5,821
insurance premium 5,397 3,973
Marketing costs 4,580 4179
Security expenses 4,517 4,610
Fees paid to financial institutions 2,796 2,376
Rental expenses 1,313 1,385
Environmental protection costs 1,211 810
Training expenses 734 532
Gifts 712 1,278
Technica! inspections of vehicles and railway cars 663 G30
Fines, penalties, damages and compensations for damages 282 575
Expenses to liquidation of unneeded property, plant and equipment 10 G614
Provision for doubtful receivabies, write-off of receivables, net - 288
Other 6,682 6,191
Total other operating expenses o 187,642 134,470

The expenses for services pravided by auditors were as follows:

in € thousands 2021 2020
Audit of the financial staiements 113 113
Other assurance services 48 40
Total o 159 153

The notes form an integral part of these separale financial statements. 12



SLOVNAFT, a.s.
Notes to the separate financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2021
7 Finance revenues and expenses

Accounﬁng policies IR : S - : :

Interest is recogmzed on a trme-proport:onate basrs that reﬂects tha sffect;ve y:e!d on the reiated asset D:wdends
due are recognized. when the shareholders® right to receive ‘payment is established. Changes in the fair. value of
derivatives not quaiifying for hedge accounting are reflected in the profi Ti/ioss in'the period the change oceurs.

in € thousands 2021 2020
Dividends 72,705 981
Interest revenue 673 336
Net foreign exchange gain on recelvables and payables - 4,677
Net gain fram derivatives - 3,000
Net foreign exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents - 50
Other 3 24
Total finance revenues 73,381 9,068
Net foreign exchange loss on receivables and payables (15,732)

Interest expense on borrowings (2,013) {1,523)
interest expense on provisions (Note 20} (1,150} (1,481}
Net foreign exchange foss on cash and cash equivalents (9086) -
Net loss from derivatives {669)

Impairment of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income - (10}
Other {18) (19)
Total finance expenses {20,488) (3,033)
Finance revenues/{expenses), net 52,893 6,035

8 income taxes

Accountmg po!ic.-es . S :

The mcome tax charge consrsts of currenr and deferred taxes

The currenr income tax is based on taxabfe prof:t for the perrod Taxabie proﬁt dfffers from prof it as repoﬁed in
the separate statemerit of comprehens:ve intome because ofitems of mcome or expense thaf are never taxabie
or deduct;bi xable.or. deductrble in. other penods TN
d fa afe ; i, ;Deferred mcome t‘axes reﬂect the net tax € ffects ef
“of assets and fiabilities for fi nancfa! rsportmg purposes
. Deferred tax ‘assets and. I.'abflrtfes are measured using the tax
n.which those femporary differences are expectad o be
-settie ! ! X *ﬂabﬂ:ﬂes and- deferred . fax " ‘assels reflects the tax
nces tha wou!d fo!!ow from the manner inwi c_:_h_ the Company expecfs, a _-fhe end of the reportmg
( ih cany{ng amoant ofits assets and !rab:iit:es : B
Dafsrre tax assefs are recog nized for all deductrb!e temporary dffferences, _cany fomfard of unused tax: cnad:ts
and tax losses’ ef tis probab!e thai suff c:enf taxable proffts Wf!i be avaflabfe agamst wh.'ch the deferred tax
assez‘sca U ; N
Deferred rnoome lax !fabff:rres are recogmzed for a!! taxable iemporary dn’ferences

Deferred mcom tax habmtfes are not recogmzed in respect of taxab!e temporary dffferences assoc:aied wrfh
mvestments in subsidiaries, associates, and interests in joint ventures, ‘where the timing. of the reversal of the
temporary: dffferences can’ be contmf}ed and it is probabie that the remporary d:fferences wrfl not reverse m the
foreseeable future.

At: each end of raporimg perrod the Gompany re-assesses unrecogmzed dafearred z‘ax assets and. the carrymg
amount of deferred tax agsels. The Compa_ny recognizes a previously unrecognized deferred tax asset o the
exient that it has become probable that future taxable profit \ will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. The
Company converse!y reduces the carrying amount of a deferred fax asset jo the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxabie prof t: wm’ be avarfable t‘o allow tha benef 13 of parz‘ or the entrr@ deferred iax asset o be
utilized.

Current and deferred tax are charged or cred:tea‘ d:recﬂy o eqwty i rhe tax relates to ;tems that are cred;ted or
charged, in the same of @ diferent period, directly to eqwty, including an adjustment to the opening balance of
reserves resulting from a change in accounting palicy that is applied retrospectively.

The notes form an integral part of these separate finandial statements. 13
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Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2021

Total applicable income taxes reported in these separate financial statements in 2021 and 2020 include the folfowing
components:

in € thousands 2021 2020
Current corporate income tax 50,232 6
Deferred corporate income tax 3D (20,178}
Total income tax expense 50,201 {20,172)

In 2021, the applicable corporate income tax rate on the taxable income of the Company was 21% (2020: 21%)).

The deferred tax balances as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 and movements in 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Recognized
Recognized in other
1 January in profitY comprehen- 31 December
in € thousands 2021 {loss) sive income 2021
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets {104,565} 185 - {104,380)
Provisions 14,139 572 {372} 14,339
Lease liabilities 14,483 2,492 - 16,975
Tax losses carried forward 5,389 (1,798) - 3,503
Other 7,679 (1,422) - 6,257
Total (62,875) 31 (372) (63,216)
Recognized
Recognized in other
1 January in profitt  comprehen- 31 December
in € thousands 2020 {loss)  sive income 2020
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (126,738) 22171 - {104,565}
Provisions 13,576 558 5 14,138
Lease liabitities 13,885 598 14,483
Tax losses carried forward 7,194 (1,805) - 5,389
Other 9,023 (1,344) - 7,679
Totat (83,058) 20,178 5 (62,875)

In 2021, the Company utilized the cumulative tax losses in the amount of €8,565 thousand (2020: €8,555
thousand).

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets in the amount of €3,593 thousand as at 31 December 2021
(31 December 2020: €5,389 thousand) to cumulative tax losses that is available to offset against future taxable
profits. These tax losses can be utilized during 2022 - 2023.

The Company does not record any temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, for which a deferred tax liability has not been recognized.

The reconciliation batween the reported income tax expense and the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard tax
rafes is as follows:

in € thousands 2021 2020
Profitf{loss) before tax 302,985 (102,058)
Tax at the applicable tax rate 21% (2020: 21%) 63,623 (21,432)
Permanent differences {13,546) 1,250

- 8

Adjustments in respect of deferred income tax of previous periods
Effect of write-off of deferred tax assets without affecting of cusrent income tax 124 3

Effect of different lax rates - )

Total income tax expense . 50,200 (20’,1.7.2}.

Effective tax rate (%) 16.57 (19.76)
4

The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statements,
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Notes to the separate financial statements prepared in accordance with Internationat Financial
Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2021

9 Intangible assets and property, plant and eqguipment

9.1 Intangible assets

Accounting pol:cies

fntang:bie assets acqu:red separately are capffahzed at c:ost and from a busmess acqwsrtron are capn‘ahzed at
fairvalue as at the date.of acquisition. lntangfble ‘assels are. recognrzed if it is probable that the future economic
benefits. thaf are artnbutabfe to'the. asset w:!f ﬂow_to tha Company- and the cosr of ihe asset can'be measured
ref;abiy : i i

Followmg m:t:ai recog :I_fon, 1 ol Ifedt the class of mtangfb!e assets The useful !:ves of these
intangible : asseis are assossed fo be aither fi nite or mde ite. Amortization is. charged onassets with a fi nite useful
life: over-the best estfmaf'e af the;r useful i:ves usmg the traight line method, The. amomzataon period and the
nortization method are reviewed annually at 1l 1.of the period. lntangfb!e assels, exc!udfng development

sts, created within the busi  are vitalized and expenditire is charged against income in'the year in
which the expendftura isincurred. Intangible as_sets are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash~generatmg unit level. Useful hves are also exammed oran annual bas:s and adjustments, where appfmabfe
are: made ona i spec ive -bas' : : : :

”s;are expense as, ncurred’ _ lopmenr expend:iure mcun‘ed on an mdfwdual pro;ecr is. camed
reasanébfy be regarded as assured. to

h { ‘model is’ appked;; requiring . ‘the. asset to be camed at cost-_ ess any
sses. Costs. in ‘development -slage -cannot. be amortized. : The. carrying value ‘of
2 airment annually when the asset is.nof yet.in use or more frequent{y when
durmg the penod indicating that the carrymg va!ue may not be recoverable; e

The Comp .y c.
are received on an annual basis and in return the C
The Company has. adopted_ 6t l;ab:lrty approach ioithe emission rights granted. Under: this method the. granted
ehv':'ss_{_on rights are measured af nil and a provision is only recoghized when actual emissions exceed the emission

rights granted. Where emission nghts are purchased from third parties, they are rreated asa re:mbursement rrght
“The purchased emission rights-are récorded at cost less impairment, if any.

! | he. European Emfss,'on Tradmg Schames The nghts
andin return the Company is reqmred to remit rights. equal toits ‘actual emissions..

Emission

in € thousands rights Rights Software Total
Cost

1 January 2020 356 35,700 65,874 101,830
Additions 17,377 489 3,135 21,011
Disposals (17,733) - (110} (17,843)
Transfers - - 21 21
31 December 2020 - 36,199 68,920 105,119
Additions 27,053 - 6,024 33,077
Disposals (27,053) - (282) {27,335)
Reclassification - assets held for sale - - {163) {163)
Transfers - - 214 214
31 December 2021 ] - 36,199 74,713 10912
Amortization and impairment

1 January 2020 - 27,344 53,381 80,725
Amortization - 553 3,170 3,723
Disposals - - (74) (74)
31 December 2020 o . BT, 89T 56,477 84,374
Amortization - 543 2,662 3,205
Disposals - - {209} {208}
Reclassification - assets held for sale - - (163) {163)
31 December 2021 ) - 28440 58,767 87,207
Net book value

31 December 2021 - 7,759 15,046 23,705
31 December 2020 - 8,302 12,443 20,745

1 January 2020 356 8,356 12,493 21,205

Software is being amortized evenly over its useful economic life. The Company has no intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life.

The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statements. 15
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9.2 Property, plant and equipment

Accounfing polictes .....

Propefry, plant and equ:pment are siated ar hrstortcei cost (or the carrymg va!ue of the essets determmed as
at 1-May.1992) less accumulated depreciation, depletion and ‘accumulated impairment loss, _Mﬂ?en assefs are
sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are. eliminated from the accounts and any gam'er !oss
resu!tmg from their d;sposa! is included in the prof’ itfioss for the period. -

The initial cost of propsﬂy, plant and equrpment compnses ‘fts purchase pncs mc!udmg 1mport dut;es ;
refundable purchase faxes. and’ any dfrecﬂy az‘tributable costs of bringing the asset to its working. cond:tron and

: : Estimated decommrss.ronmg and site restoration costs are
cap;tai;zed en‘her upon mmai recognmcn orif decrs:on -dscommfss:onmg is made subssquenﬂy af the.time of
the decision. ‘Changes in: estimates thereof edjust the carrying amount of assets. Expend:tures incurred.after the
property, plant and.equipment ‘have been pu_r into _operation, ‘such’'as. repairs and maintengnce .and overhead
COSts: (except for psr:odfc maintenance and inspec osts), are’ normaﬁy charged o the proﬁwoss i z‘hs perfod
in. which “the ‘costs -are’ incurred, Periodic ‘maintenance. and mspect:cm costs ere cepitahzed a8

component of the related assets

Consz‘ruca‘ron in. progress represents plant and properfies: undsr construct:on and 8. stated at cest Thrs mcludes
‘cost, of construction, plant and equipment angd other drrect costs. Construct.ron m progress is not deprecrated untii
‘stich time.as. ihe relevem‘ asset.v vailable for. use:

Land ewned af the dats of the estabhshment of the Company has'been stated at the values aimbuted to itin the
legisfation mcemoratmg the: Company “These-. ve!ues are. treated as. cost Land is. carrfed at cost Iess eny
impairment provisions. Land is not depreciated, SRS

Machinery

Land and and Construction
in € thousands buiidings equipment Other  in progress Total
Cost
1 January 2020 1,404,533 2,196,611 134,526 121,448 3,857,118
Additions 4,390 604 12,028 111,603 128,625
Put to use 54,350 60,132 7,136 {121,617) -
Disposals (1,973) (18,082) (3,853) (47) {23,955}
Transfers 1 1 1 (24) (21)
31 December 2020 1,461,301 2,239,266 149,837 111,363 3,961,767
Additions 4,663 2,468 22,875 91,106 121,112
Put to use 23,656 45,760 4,048 (73,464) -
Disposals (4,281) {13,883) {4,081) - (22,245)
Reclassification - assets held for sale (35,673) (5,528) (5,124) - (46,325)
Transfers - - - (214) (214)
31 December 2021 1,449,666 2,268,083 167,555 128,791 4,014,095
Depreciation and impairment
1 January 2020 651,245 1,578,762 83,471 3,104 2,316,582
Depreciation 63,036 102,697 19,682 - 185,415
impairment 2 - - “ 2
Reversal of impairment (172) - - (118) {288)
Disposals (1,905) (17,954) (3.611) - (23.470)
Transfers (2} 1 1 - -
31 December 2020 712,204 1,663,506 99,543 2,988 2,478,241
Depreciation 50,668 103,486 19,749 - 173,803
impairment 348 225 - 1,735 2,308
Reversal of impairment {1,243) {29) - (36) (1,308)
Disposals (919) (13,762) (3,855) - (18,536)
Reclassification - assets held for sale {19,076) (3,789) {4,080} - {26,945)
31 December 2021 741,982 1,749,637 111,357 4,687 2,607,663
Net book value
31 December 2021 707,684 518,446 56,198 124,104 1,406,432
31 December 2020 749,097 575,760 50,294 108,375 1,483,526
1 January 2020 753,288 617,849 51,085 118,344 1,540,536
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Borrowing costs

.Aecounting po!ic:es

Borrowing costs that are dfrecﬂy attnbutable ro the acqws;tron construct:cn or product:on ofa quahfymg asset are
.capitalized. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the assef are inprogress

and expenditures and.borrowing. costs are bemg incurred. Borrowmg costs are capitalized until the assets are
ready for their.intended use, Borrowing costs include interest charges and other costs incurred in connection with
the borrowing of funds, mc!udfng exchange d:fferenees arising from foreign currency bcrrowmgs used :‘c fi nance_

these projects to the extent thaf they are regarded as an adjustment fo inferest costs.

Cost of property, plant and equipment includes borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
certain items of property, plant and equipment. In 2021 and 2020, the Company did not capitalize borrowing costs
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment as IAS 23 conditions for capitalization were not fulfilled. In 2021,

the Company capitalized borrowing cost from general purpose borrowings at capitalization rate of 0. 37% (2020:

0.21%).

Government granits

Accounting policies

;chernment grants are recogmzed al the:r farr vaf ) _here there xs reasonab!e assurance that the grant wr# be_
received, and alf-attaching conditions will ‘be-complied with, ‘When the. grant relates fo_an expense item, it is
recognized as income. over the years necessary to maich the g:ant on & systematic basis to.the costs that itils
intended fo. compensate Where the grant relates fo an ‘asset, the fair value is credited fo-a deferred income
account -and is reieased tc the prof‘ t/lcss over. the expected usefui hfe of the relevant asset by equa! annua!

instaliments.”

Property, plant and equipment includes assets with the carrying value of €8,623 thousand (31 December 2020:
€9,432 thousand) financed from the government grants (Note 21). Part of these assets was designed and
constructed to serve state authorities, including military forces, in state emergencies. In such situations title to
these assets may be restricted.

Insurance

Property, plant and equipment is insured in the amount of €5,867,728 thousand. The insurance covers all risks of
direct material losses or damages, including machinery and equipment failure. In 2021, the Company obtained
compensations from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired, lost or given up
that is included in profitlioss in amount of €163 thousand (2020: €1,474 thousand).

9.3 lLeased assets

Accountmg policies

The determmaticn whether an, arrangement ccntams or iS a Iease e‘epends on !he substance of the arrangemenf
al mcepffon date. If fulfifiment of the arrangement depends:on the use of a spec:fc asset or conveys the r;ghi to
‘use the assel, itis. deemed to ccntain a’lease element.and is recorded accordmgfy SRR

The Company recogmzes the rrght—of-use assets and Iease hebmt.'es for most leases.

The Company measures the nght—ef-use asget at’ cost iess eccumulated deprec:atfon and any accumulated
-fmpa:rmenz‘ lqs_s_es Capftahzed leased assets are deprecrated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the
asset or the lease term. The lease liability is initially measured at.the present value of the lease. payments payab!e
over the Iease term, discounied at the rate implicit in the lease if that can be readily determined, otherwise the
Company as jessee. applies mcremenial borrowmg rate The fease ifabmfy is measured subsequenﬂy usmg the

effective Interest rate method

The Company has elected not to recogmze nght»of—use asseis and Iease !:abmaes for- some Ieases of fow~vafue
assets and short-ferm leases. The Company recoghizes the !eese payments assccrated wrih ihese ieases as
expense on a stre:ght«fme basis over the lease term. ' :

The Company presents nght—of—use assets from leases in ‘!ntangrble assets and ’Propedy pfant antd equ:pment’
the same line itam as it presents underlying assets of the sare nature that it owns.
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Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment acquired on lease:

Machinery
Land and and

in € thousands Rights buildings equipment Other Total
Cost

1 January 2020 65 37,858 8,662 35,047 81,632
Additions 32 4,390 412 12,028 16,862
Disposals {65) (2) (8) (408) (483}
31 December 2020 32 42,246 9,066 46,667 98,011
Additions - 4,663 2,468 22,875 30,006
Disposals - (3,768) (1,202) (157) (5,127)
31 December 2021 o 32 43,141 10,332 69,385 122,890
Amortization/Depreciation and impairment

1 January 2020 29 2,836 3,028 Q777 16,5670
Amortization/Depreciation 13 2,369 1,252 10,162 13,796
Disposals {(41) - (8 (217) (266)
31 December 2020 1 5,205 5,172 19,722 30,100
Amortization/Depreciation 13 3,446 1,292 10,698 15,449
Disposals - {453) (1,180 - (1,633)
31 December 2021 14 8198 5284 30,420 43,916
Net book value

31 December 2021 18 34,943 5,048 38,965 78,974
31 December 2020 3 37,041 3,894 26,945 67,911
1 January 2020 36 35,022 4,734 25,270 65,062

9.4 Depreciation, depletion and amorfization

Accounting pciicies

Deprec:atfon ofeach component of mtang.vbfe assets and propen‘y, p!ant and equfpment is computsd ona sz‘ra;ght—
line basis over their respective useful fives. Usual pearfods of usefui ifves for dszerent types of mtangrb!e assets
and propeﬂy planf and: equment are as ol RN .

.Amortfzatmn of leased assets is provided. mg the stra;ghbhne mefhod over ihe ierm of the respect:ve iease or
the -useful life of the asset, ‘whichever penod isless. Penod;c mamz‘enance and rnspect:on costs are deprecrated
‘next similar.maintenance takes: plac g
The useful life and deprec:atfon methods are reviewed at Ieast annuaily to ensure ihat a‘he method and perfod of
depreciation are_consistent with the expectsd paﬂem of economrc benef“ fs from ffems of mfangfble assets and
property, plant and equipment, T

Review of useful lives and residual values of intangible assets and propertty, plant and equipment

The Company annually reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment. The financial effect of the annual review represenis following increase/(decrease) of
depreciation expense in 2021 and in following years:

in € thousands 2021 20214 2023 2024 2025  After 2025
Depreciation, depletion,

amortization and impairment 529 723 746 672 {401} (2,269)

9.5 Impairment of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Accounting po.’iciw

Intangible . assets and. propeﬂy, plant and equ:pment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an-asset.may not be recoverable, Whenever the canymg
amount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment foss is recognized in
the profitioss for the period for items of infangibles and property, plant and equiprrent carried af cost. The
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recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value less costs to self and value in use. The fair valug is the
_amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in-an arm's length transaction while value in use is the present value
of estimated nef futuré cash flows expscted 1o arise from the continuing use of an asset and fromits dfsposal af
the end.of its useful life. Recoverable amounts are esz‘rmated for individual assets or, If this is not practicable, for
the cash—generatmg unrt The Company assesses at each rsportmg fate whether there :s any: mdfcafron thar

Ioss been recognrzed m pnor years. ;

Cnrt;cal accounting esttmates and judge I ents

The :mpa:rment calculatton requrres an estzmate of the value in use’ of ihe cashgeneratmg unrts Such va!ue is
measured based on. discounted pro;ected cash flows, The most s:gnrffcant variables in detenmnmg cash flows
are discount rates, termmaf ‘values, -the-period. for: whfch cash flow pro;ectrons are mads, as well .as the
assumplions ¢ and estimates used to determine the cash mﬂows and outﬁows fmparrment Ioss as. we!l as reversaf
of impairment loss Is fecognized in the profitioss for the period. =

Based on the estimate of value in use the Company has recorded impairment of intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment of €1,000 thousand in 2021 (2020: revenue from reversal of impairment €286 thousand)
{Note 9.1 and 9.2},

10 Investments in subsidiaries

3Ac¢ountmg policies. s

Subs:dfary is an entfty ovef wh;ch the Company has conirof The Company controls an mvestee when ;!‘ is
exposed, or.has rights, to variablé returns. from s mvo!vement w:th the mvestee and has the ab:hty to affect those
returns thmugh its power.over the investee. S :

_investments in subs;a'.rar:es are recogmzed in carrymg vafue rspresentmg acqwsrtfon cos! less potent.va!
accumulated Iosses of: :mpa:rment Acqursmon cost of: mvestments m subs.'dfanes :s the purchase pnce of
‘acquired securmes or shares '

lnvestments in. subs;dfanes arg subject of rmparrment test when mdfcator of pctent:ai fmpa:rmenz‘ exrsts When an
_extemai or internal indicator.of :mpa:rmenr exists,: recoverabie amount.has fo he determined and compared with-
‘net investment. If the recoverable amount is. matenamf or permanently lower than net investrment, impairment

shoult-be recorded. If the recoverable amount is, matenaify orpermanentfy h.rgher ihan net mvestment :mpatrment
feversal should be recorded.: - . S

Net hook Net book

Ownership  Ownership value vaiue
2021 2020 2021 2020
Company name Country Range of activity % % € thouysands € thousands
APOLLO Rafinérla, s.r.o.  Slovakia Wholesale 100.00 100.00 7 7
Operation of freight
DALBY a. s. Slovakia transshipment 100.00 - 10,500 -
Accounting and
MOL GBS Slovakia, s.r. 0. Siovakia financial services 4100.00 100.00 12 12
MOL T & Digital GBS Information
Slovakia, s. 1. €. Slovakia technology services 160.00 100.00 5 5
Slovnaft Mobility Services, Advertising and
5.T. 0. Slovakia marketing services 100.00 100.0C 900 200
SL.OVNAFT MONTAZE Repairs &
A OPRAVY a.s, Slovakia maintenance 100.00 100.G0 1,230 1,230
Slovnaft Polska S.A Potand Wholesale 100.00 100.00 38,463 38,483
SLOVNAFT TRANS a.s. Slovakia  Transport 100.00 100.00 2,048 2,048
. Research &
VURUP, as. Siovakia  devetopment 100.00 100.00 2,594 2,594
Transport support
_SWS spol. s 1.0, Slovakia  services 100.00 100.00 768 768
Total investments in subsidiaries - I 56,527 46,027
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Equity and profitioss of subsidiaries were as follows:

Equity Equity Profitfloss)  Profiti{loss)

2021 2020 2021 2020

Company name € thouysands € thousands € thousands € thousands
APOLLO Rafinéria, s.r.o. - - - -
DALBY a. s. 2,195 - 859 -
MOL. GBS Slovakia, s. 1. 0. 506 496 252 242
MOL IT & Digital GBS Slovakia, s. 1. 0. 325 288 235 199
Siovnaft Mobility Services, s. T. 0. 175 431 (256) (178)
SLOVNAFT MONTAZE A OPRAVY as. 2,635 4,132 768 628
Slovnaft Polska S.A. 40,912 49,158 7,395 145
SLOVNAFT TRANS a.s. 4,260 4,040 392 590
VURUP, a.s. 4,314 4,490 592 768
SWS spol. s r.0. 254 428 (175} {29}
Total investments in subsidiaries 55,576 63,463 10,062 2,374

The activities of the undertakings shown above are for the most part connected with the principal activity of the
Company. No subsidiary is listed on stock exchange.

Development of the Company’s interest in subsidiaries:

Acquisition Net book
in € thousands cost  Impairment value
1 January 2020 57,300 (11,657) 45,652
Additions 376 - 375
31 December 2020 57,684 {11,657) 46,027
Additions 10,500 - 10,500
31 December 2021 68,184 (11,657) 56,527

On March 31, 2021, the Company became a 100% owner of the company DALBY a. s.

11 Investments in associated companies

Accountmg pohcies

Assocrated company is a:ﬁ enrn‘y over wh:ch fhe Comp has s:gnfﬂcant mﬁuence ngnrﬁcant mﬂuence is: the.
power 16 parti inate in. the f" nanc:a! and operatmg pohc / ecfsrons of the :nvesfee but is. nof control or jomt controf
over those pol:cres :

Investments in assoc:ated compames are recognized carrying value repfesentmg acqu:s:t.ron cost less potent:ai
accumulated fosses of fmpa:rment Acqurs;tfon cost of mvestments m assoc.'ated compames is the purchase pnce
of acqurred securmes ‘or shares.

fnvestments in assomated companies are subject of :mpa:rmeni test when md:cator of potenﬂa! rmpa:rment exzsrs
When an external or ‘internal indicator of. Impairment exists, recoverab!e amotint has 1o be. defermined and
compared with net investment, If the. recoverable amount is mafenah’y or permanenﬂy lower than net investment,
impairment should be recorded. If the recoverable amount is matena!ly or permanenz‘ly hfgher than net mvestment
impairment reversal should be recorded. '

Net book Net book

Ownership  Ownership value value
2021 2020 2021 2020
Company name Country Range of activity % % € thousands € thousands
Production of
Messer Slovnaft s.r.o. Slovakia technical gases 49.00 49.00 1,671 1.671
MOL. CZ Downstream
Investment B.V. The Netherlands Financial services 45.00 45.00 58,350 68,350
Production and
MEROQOCO, a.s. Slovakia sale of bicfuels 25.00 25.00 1,407 1,407
Total investments in associated companies R e ) 71,428 71,428

No associated company is listed on stock exchange.
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MOL CZ Downstream investment B.V. is the parent company of MOL Ceské republika, s.r.0. and covers the retail
business of cil products in the Czech Republic. Transactions with MOL Ceska republika, s.r.o. are reported in
Note 26 as transactions with MOL Group companies.

The Company purchases from Messer Slovnaft s.r.0. nitrogen and from MEROCO, a.s. components to biofuels.

Development of the Company's interest in associated companies:

Acquisition Net book
in € thousands cost  Impairment value
1 January 2020 71,018 - 71,918
Paid reduction of registered capital in Messer Slovnaft s.r.o. (490} - (490)
31 December 2020 71,428 - 71,428
31 December 2021 71,428 - 74,428
Assets, equily, liabilities, revenues and profit/loss of associated companies were as follows:

2021

in € thousands Assets Equity Liakilities Revenues  Profit/{loss)

Messer Slovnaft s.r.o. 5,392 3,803 1,499 4,872 512

MOL CZ Downstream Investment B.V. 154,992 154,971 21 - 44,764

MEROCQO, a.s, 98,006 38,135 59,871 196,912 20,709

Total 258,390 196,999 61,391 201,784 65,985
2020

it € thousands Assets Equity LiabHities Revenues  Profitf{loss)

Messer Slovnaft s.r.o. 5,348 3,865 1,483 4,610 483

MOL CZ Downstream Investment BV, 225,136 225,117 18 - (73}

MERQCO, a.s. 47,674 18,932 28,742 115,638 2,278
“Total 278,158 247,914 30,244 120,248 2,688
12 Other non-current assets

in € thousands 2021 2020

Other non-current financial assets

Long-term loans granted 550 450
Total other non-current financial assets 550 450

QOther non-current non-financial assets

Prepaid expenses 938 250
Advance payments for assets under construction 364 1,070
Other 4 4
Total other non-current non<financial assets 1,308 1,324

Total other non-current assets 1,856 1,774
Long-term loans granted as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 consist of the following ifems:

Weighted average
interest rate {%)

in € thousands Currency  Maturity 2021 2020 2021 2020

Unsecured loan granted EUR 2025 1.80 1.80 553 452

Unsecured loan granted EUR 2024 0.85 0.85 - 2,233

Unsecured loan granted EUR 2021 1.97 1.97 - 30
‘Total long-term loans granted 553 . A&TAB

Current portion of long-term loans (Note 15) ) {3) (2,265)
Total long-term loans granted, net of current portion 550 450

The loan was provided to the company Slovnaft Mobility Services, s. r. 0. for financing of working capital.

The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statements.
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_in € thousands 2021 2020
Other non-current financial assets 550 450
Provision 1o other non-current financial asseis - -
Total other non-current financial assets 550 450

13 Inventories

Inventories, including work-in-progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, after provision for
slow-mioving and obsolete items. Nef. realizable value is the selling price in the ordinary course of business, fess

the costs of making the sale, Estimates of net realizable value are based on the most reliable evidence available

at the time the estimates are made, of the.amount the inventories are expected lo realize, These estimates take

it consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring after. the end of the period fo
the oxtent that siich events confirm condiions existing atthe end of thoperiod. =~

Cost of purchased goods, including crude of, is defermined primarily using the FIFO method. The acquisition cost

of own produced inventory. consists of direct materials, direct wages and the appropriate portion.of proguction

‘overhead expenses including royalty but excludes borrowing costs. -Unrealizable inventory is fully writtefi off."

Cost Book value Cost  Book value
_in € thousands 2021 2021 2020 2020
Raw materials 56,011 53,739 50,870 49,349
Purchased crude oil 68,977 68,977 53,421 53,421
Work in progress and semi-finished goods 127,235 127,235 76,038 76,038
Finished goods 137,071 137,071 67,649 67,649
Goods for resale 12,108 12,175 9,946 9,018
Total inventories ) 401,492 399,197 257,924 256,375
Movements in the provision for inventories were as follows!
in € thousands 2021 2020
At the beginning of the period 1,549 5,891
Additions 896 27,021
Reversal () (244)
Use {148) (31,119)
At the end of the period . 2,293 1,549

14 Trade receivables

'Aq:c?pqnting'bc:ﬁcies_:f' T T O
Receivables are initially recognized at fair value less transaction costs and subsequenily measured at amortized

cost less any allowance. for impairment of doubtful réceivables. A provision for impairment s made for-expected

credit fosses and when there is objective evidence (such as. the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficultios of the deblor) that the Company will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the .or_igf_'fral

terms of the invaice. Iimpaired receivables are derecognized when they are assessed as uncollectible.

If collection of trade receivables is expected within the normal business cycle which is one year or léss, they are
classified as current assefs. If not, they are presented as non-current assefs. ' . : '

in € thousands 2021 2020
Trade receivables 433,459 224,657
Provision for doubtful trade receivables B (2,498} (2,685)
Total trade receivables 430,961 221,972

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 days’ terms.
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Movements in the provision for doubtful trade receivables were as folfows:

in € thousands 2021 2020
At the beginning of the period 2,685 2,818
Additions 678 1,824
Reversal {678) {1,642}
Amounts written off (183) (412)
Currency differences (4) (3)
At the end of the period o 2,498 2,685

The Company did not have any impairment booked fo receivables to related parties as at 31 December 2021 and
2020, neither booked any impairment to receivables to related parties during 2021 and 2020.

15 Other current assets

in € thousands 2021 2020
Qther current financial assels

Short-term loans granted 184,443 242,498
Receivables from dividends 825 1,536
Financial coltaterals granted 303 328
Current portion of long-term loans granted (Note 12) 3 2,265
Collateral granted regarding derivative transactions - 5,400
Other 72 57
Total other current financial assets ) 185,646 252,084
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss - derivatives 30,043 5,01
Other current non-financial assefs

Reaceivables from VAT, duties and other taxes 54,702 11,288
Receivables from excise taxes 7.2562 7,287
Advances 2,908 3,472
Prepaid expenses 953 804
Other 648 324
Total other current non-financial assets 66,461 23,185
Total other current assets . 282,150 290,310

Short-term loans granted in amount of €184,443 thousand represent unsecured loans in EUR granted to the
company MOL Group Finance Zrt. under the intra-group financing scheme.

in € thousands 2021 2020
Other current financial assets 185,646 252,084
Provisicn to other current financial assets -
Total other current financial assets 185,646 252,084

16 Cash and cash equivalents

Accounting policies -

:Cash and cash equalents include casfr on hand cashal banks cash poof recefvab!es, shoﬂ-term bank deposn‘s
.and short-ferm, highly liguid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with matum‘y Iess
‘than three months from the date of acquisition and that ‘are subject to an ms:gmﬁcant risk of changea invalue.

Cash poo! liahilities and bank overdrafis repayab!e on demand, in case where the use of shortwterm overdraﬁs
forms an integral part of the Companys cash management pract;ces are included as componenr of cash and

cash equivalent for the purposes of cash flow statement.

2024

in € thousands EUR PLN Usn CZK Total
Cash at bank 14,371 - 1,304 7,943 23,618
Short-term bank deposits - 8,200 - - 8,200
Cash on hand 8,813 - - - 8,913
Total cash and cash equivalenis 23,284 8,200 1,304 7,943 40,731
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2020

in € thousands EUR PLN usD CZK Total
Cash at bank 2,783 - 27 10,936 13,746
Shori-term bank deposits - 4,332 - - 4,332
Cash on hand . 8,160 - - - 8,160
‘Total cash and cash equivalents 10,943 4,332 27 10,936 26,238

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

in € thousands 2021 2020 2019
Cash at bank 23,618 13,746 78,264
Short-term bank deposits 8,200 4,332 6,655
Cash on hand 8,913 8,160 7,946
QOther cash equivalents - - 21
Overdrafis - {2,268}

Total cash and cash eguivalents 40,731 23,970 92,886

17 Asset held for sale

Accountmgpoiicies Ll R e : L I e R
;Non-current ass d d:sposa! groups are c!assrfed as he!d for sa!e rf rheir canymg amounts are fo be reaf:zed
by sale father than through continugd use. This is the case ‘when the sale is hrghiy probabfe, and the asset or
d;sposal group is available. for. :mmed:ate sale in it present cond:tron Management. must be comm:tted to'the
sa!e ‘which’ sholild be expected fo qualify for. recognmon as a corpleted sale; f_n'one vear from the: date of

i ation as held for:s_ le, and actions required o complete the plan of sale houfd :ndfcate that rt :s unf:kely
that s:gmfcant changes fothe plan wr!! be made or that the p!an w;!l be withdrai - :

Immedfafeiy before the mrtral classrf catron of the asset as he!d for sa!e, :mparrment' test shali be carrfed out Non~
current assets and dfsposaf groups classified as held for sale are measured at the fower of carrying amount-and

fair value less’ ‘costs fo sefl. Property, plant and equment and :ntang:bie assets are no ionger deprec;atad or
‘amortized once classified as held for sale. : . o

As at 31 December 2021, assets held for sale contains property, plant and equipment of the service stations at
carrying amount of €19,380 thousand.

18 Equity

1Accouhtihg policies
D;wdends : AL LT : L .
Dw:dends are recordad m the penod m wh:ch ihey are approved by the Annua! Generai Meetmg

Orher comgonents of egw&

Other components of eqwty represent rtems charged or credrted fo oiher comprehens:ve mc:ome

Actuarial gains and tosses

The fafr va.fuaﬂon reserve mciudes the cumu!at:ve net change in tha fafr va!ue of fi nanc;ai assefs measured ar fair
value through other comprehensive income.

18.1 Share capital

The Company's authorized share capital is 20,625,229 ordinary shares (31 December 2020: 20,625,229) with
a par value of €33.20 each. All these shares are issued and fully paid. Al issued shares grant same rights.
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Share of the major shareholders of the Company on share capital:

2021 2021 2020 2020

€ thousands % € thousands %

MOL Nyrt, 684,758 100.0 684,758 100.0
Total 684,758 100.0 684,758 ) 100.0

18.2 Retained earnings

Legal reserve fund

Retained earnings comprise the iegal reserve fund of €136,952 thousand (31 December 2020 €136,952
thousand). This has been set up in accordance with the Slovak legislation to cover potential future losses. The
legal reserve fund is not distributable.

Distributable reserves

Reserves available for distribution to the shareholders as at 31 December 2021 were €329,960 thousand
(31 December 2020: €480,466 thousand).

Settlement of loss for the previpus accounting period

The loss for the previous accounting period in the amount of €81,886 thousand was settled from retained earnings.
Dividends

The dividends approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 17 June 2021 were €70,000
thousand, equivalent to €3.3939 per share. Dividends were paid out from retained earmings.

18.3 Other components of equity

in € thoirsands 2021 2020
Fair value change of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income 2,330 2,330
Other components of equity 2,330 2,330

Movements In the actuarial gains/{losses) on defined benefit pension plans charged or credifed fo other comprehensive income
were as follows:

in € thousands 2021 2020

At the beginning of the period - -

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension plans 1,773 (26)
Income tax refated to actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension plans (372} 5

Reclassification of actuariat gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension plans to retained

earnings (1,401) 21

At the end of the period - -

19 Borrowings

Accounting policies T P o _ _

All foans and borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs
associated with theborrowing. After initial recognition, ‘loans and borrowings are subsequently measured af
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, Amortized cost is calculated by faking info account any
issue costs, and any discount-or prefmium on setilement. Gains and losses are recognized in net in the profitloss
for the perfod when the liabilities are derécognized, as well as through the amortization process, except to the
‘extent they are capitalized as borrowing costs. ' : '
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19.1 Long-term debt

in € thousands Currency 2021 2020
Lease liabiliies EUR 80,834 68,969
Total long-term debt 80,834 68,969
Current portion of long-term debt (14,556) (13,654}
Total long-term debt, net of current portion 66,278 55,315
The minimum lease payments and the present value of the minimum lease payments are as follows:
Present value Present value
Minimum  of minimum Minimum  of minimum
lease lease jease lease
payments payments payments paymenis
in € thousands 2021 2021 2020 2020
Up to 1 year 14,819 14,556 13,875 13,654
From 1 to & years 42,003 38,438 32,110 28,404
Qver 5 years 31,814 27,840 31,735 26,911
Tota} minimum lease payments 88,636 20,834 77,8620 68,969
Less amounts of financlal charges {7,802) - (8,851) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 80,834 80,834 68,969 68,969
19.2 Short-term debt
in € thousands Mena 2021 2020
Unsecured bank loan EUR - 213,038
Qverdrafts EUR - 2,268
::I;pta! short-term debt - 215,304
19.3 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
L.ong-term Long-term  Short-term Shortterm
hank non-hank bank non-bank
in € thousands horrowings  borrowings = borrowings bhorrowings
1 January 2021 - 68,969 215,304 -
Cash flows
Changes in cash flows * - {14,634) {213,000) -
Changes in cash and cash equivalents {Note 16) - - (2,268) -
Non-cash changes
Lease additions - 30,008 - -
{.ease termination - (3,507) - -
Other changes ™ - - (36) -
'31 December 2021 - 80,834 - -
Long-term Long-term  Shortterm Short-term
hank non-bank bank non-bank
_in € thousands borrowings  borrowings  borrowings borrowings
1 January 2020 - 66,120 10,001 -
Cash fiows
Changes in: cash flows * - (13,580) 203,000 -
Changes in cash and cash equivalents (Note 18) - - 2,268 -
Non-cash changes
Lease additions - 16,429 - -
Other changes ™ - - 35 -
31 December 2020 i n 58,969 218,304 s

* The cash flows are recognized in the net amount of proceeds and repayments of borrowings in the stafement of cash flows.

* Other changes include inferest and fee accruals and payments.
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20 Provisions

Agcounting policies . S T e T
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event.and it is probable (i.e..more fikely than not) that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will

be required fo seitle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can.be made of the amount of the obligation. When
the Company . expects some or all of the provision “to.be. reimbursed, . the reimbursement is “recognized -as

a separate asset but only wher the reimbursement is actually certain. Provisions are reviewed at each end of the
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. The amount of the provision is the present value

of the risk adjusted expenditures expected to be required to setle the obligation, determined using the estimated
risk free interest rate as discount rate. _Whe#é"discauhﬂng‘ is used, the carrying ‘amount of provision. increases in

of time. This increase Is recognized as an

‘each period {o refiect the unwinding of the discount by.the passage

Provision for environmenel expendiures

‘Liabilities for environmental osts are recognized-when environmental clean-ups are. probable and.the associated

costs ¢an ba reliably estimated. Generally, the timing of these: provisions ‘coincides with the commitment-to

a formal-plan of actionor, if earlier, on divestment or
best estimate of the expenditure require: e
Provision forredundancy iU T L
The employees of the Company are eligible for redundancy payment immediately upon termination, pursuart o
the Slovak faw {Labar Code, § 63, ods. 1, point a), b), c)) and the terms ‘of the Collective Agreement between the

ees. The amount of such ‘a liability.is recorded as & provision when the workforce

Company and its employe il 2 b & provisjon |
reduction program is defl d, announced and the conditions for ifs implementation.are met. .

n olosure of inactive sites. The amount recognized Is the

ne" SR th

A deﬁééd-ﬁénéﬁf plan is a pension plan that defines an :émc)Uht.:bf' pens;on penafit o ;:be.'p'rbyfdea,_- usuaﬂy as

‘a function of one or more factors such as age, years of sefvice or compensation. A defined contribution plan is
a pension plan’ under :which' the - Company pays fixed contiibutions ‘and ‘will have ‘no_legal “or constructive

obligations to pay further contributions if the scheme does not hold sufficient assets to pay a employees benefits

their
ngth

ension. plans is recognized at the end of the reporting th
prese the oblig Inito. account also adjustments for actuarial gains and losses. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit methad,
“The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by the ‘estimated future cash: outflows using

interest rates of government securities which hav terms to maturity approximating the tefms of the related liability.

Amendments to pension plans are charged or credited to the revenues and expenses in the period when incurred.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged
or credited to other compre

or &re hensive income. Actuarial gains and losses are ‘transferred fo retained earnings on

annual basis,. L Tl T T e B
None of these plans have seperately administered fu s; therefore, there are no plan assets. - T

Defined Gontribution pension plans

The Company contributes to the government and priﬁéte_.déﬁnzéid contribution pension, plans R

‘The Company makes instirance confributions to the Govemment's social and public health insurance Schemes
based on the statutory base which copstitutes taxable income of an employee from the employer. The cost of

these statutory contributions made by the Company is charged to the profitfioss in the same period as the related

personnel expenses. . i T o : S
In addition, with respect fo amployses who have chosen to participate in a supplementary pension scheme, the
Company makes contributions {o the supplemeritary scheme amounting o 3% - 6% (2020: 3% ~ 6%) from the
total of monihly wage and compensations of an employee. : . : '
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Terminatmn benet" ts

Tenwnatton beneﬁts are payable whenever an employees smployment rs ten'nmeted be_fo_re the nonnai
retirement date.or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The
:Company recognizes. termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminate the empioyment
‘of .current employees according o a detailed formal plan without. a. possibility ‘of withdrawal or to_provide

termination benefits as & resuit.of an offer. made. to encourage voluntary redundancy: Beneffts fallmg due more
{han 1 2 months after the end of th 'reportrng ponod arg dfscounted fo'the present vatue o

Bonus plans

The Company recognazes provision. for the estfmatedj'COz emissions costs whsn actual emfss:on xceeds-the
emission rights granted and still held.: ‘When actual emission ‘exceeds ‘the amount of emission rights granted
prov. is. rscogn:zsd for the exceedmg emission rfghts based onthe purchase price of affowance concluded in
forward contracts canymg amount of purchased quotas, or. ‘market quotat:ons at the reporting date, In addition,
the Company. recognizes ; provision for estimated costs of U pstream cmrss:on reductfon quotas (UER) mtended fo
be used to futﬂl obhgat.rons stfpulated by EU Fuet Quahty Dtrectrve . .

nature of these ptans such est;mates are subject to s:gnfﬂoant uncen‘amty

Outcome of certam i:t:qgtfons e

The Company is pan‘y to a number of ttttgatrons proceedrngs ano‘ CIVH ectfons arising in the ordmafy course of
business. Management uses! its own judgment to assess the most likely outcome of these ano’ a prowsron is

recognized when necessary.
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Environ- Retirement Jubilee

in € thoysands mental benefits benefits Other Total

1 January 2020 47,778 14,525 2,344 17,657 82,304

Provision made during the period and

revision of previous estimates 1,215 852 479 25775 28,321

Unwinding of the discount (Note 7) 1,267 184 30 - 1,481

Provision used during the period {3,603} (592) {322) (17,733) {22,250}
31 Pecember 2020 46,657 14,969 2,531 25,699 89,856

Provision made during the period and

revision of previous estimates 7,297 (1,082) 322 56,728 63,285

Unwinding of the discount (Note 7) 982 144 24 - 1,180

Provision used during the period (4,043) {855) (282) (26,749) (31,929)
31 December 2029 50,893 13,196 - 2,595 55,678 122,362

Current portion at 31 December 2020 4,077 611 348 25,699 30,735

Non-current portion at 31 December 2020 42 580 14,358 2,183 - 59,121

Cusrent portion at 31 December 2021 4,196 944 299 55,678 61,117

Naon-current portion at 31 December 2021 46,697 12,252 2,296 - 61,245

Environmental provision

As at 31 December 2021 the Company operated 254 petrol stations and several warehousing capacities in the
Slovak Republic. Some of these are not fully compliant with the current or future environmental legislation and
environmental policy of the Company, including containment of evaporative losses on filling of the station tanks,
treatment of effluent, and protection of soil and groundwater. The Company recognized environmental provisions
of €785 thousand as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: €544 thousand) to eliminate the deficiencies
stated above.

The utilization of the provision related to petrol stations is expected to be during 2024. The provision related to
non-compliant warehousing capacities is expected to be used in the years 2022 - 2033

In accordance with its environment policies the Company recognized also a provision for the estimated costs of
remediation of past environmental damage, primarily soil and groundwater contamination under the refinery site.
The initial provision was made on the basis of assessments prepared by the Company's internal environmental
audit team. The provision was determined on the basis of existing technology and current prices. Risk-weighted
cash flows were discounted using the calculation method of estimated risk-free real interest rates. Asg it is not
possible to reliably estimate the period for which costs will have to be incurred in connection with this
environmental burden, the Company calculates the provision based on the intemal methodology for the next 12
years. As at 31 December 2021 the present value of liability related to the provision amounted to €50,108
thousand {31 December 2020: €46,113 thousand). The utilization of this provision is expected during the years
2022 - 2033.

The closing amount of the environmental provisions as at 31 December 2021 is €50,893 thousand
{31 December 2020: €46,657 thousand).

Provision for retirement and jubilee benefits

As at 31 December 2021 the Company has recognized a provision for retirement benefits of €13,196 thousand
(31 December 2020: €14,969 thousand) to cover its estimated obligation regarding future retirement benefits
payable to current employees expacled to retire.

According to provisions of § 76a of the Labor Code and the Collective Agreement for the period May 2021 - April
2024, the Company is obliged to pay its employees on the first termination of employment after entitement to
retirement pension (including early retirement) or invalidity pension (decrease earning capacity is more than 70%) .
on the basis of the application by an employee before termination of employment or within 10 days after the end
of the one-time severance, which is a multiple of the average monthly salary of up to 7 average maonthly earnings,
based on the number of years worked. The minimum requirement of the Labor Code of ong-month average salary
payment on retirement or invalidity pension is already included in the above muitiples, Al the same time employees
are entitled, for each year of service, to a benefit corresponding to eight times the average daily price per share
of MOL Nyrt. during last 24 manths prior to the month when employment is terminated due to retirement of the
employee.
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The same or similar liability has been included in the agreements with the Trade Unions since 1992. The Company
has created expectations on the part of its employees that it will continue to provide the benefits and it is the
management's judament that it is not realistic for the Company to cease providing them.

The amount of the provision has been determined using the projected unit credit method, based on financial and
actuarial variables and assumptions that reflect relevant official statistical data and are in line with those
incorporated in the business plan of the Company.

in addition to provision for retirement the Company creates the provision for jubilee benefits. The amount of this
provision as at 31 December 2021 represented €2,595 thousand (31 December 2020: €2,531 thousand).

Movements in the present value of folal defined benefit obligation were as follows:

Retirement benefits Jubilee benefits
in € thousands 2021 2020 2021 2020
At the beginning of the period 14,969 14,525 2,531 2,344
Past service cost - - - -
Current service cost 71 826 131 142
Unwinding of the discount 144 184 24 30
Pravision used during the period (855) (592} (282) (322)
Actuarial (gains) and losses (1,773) 26 191 337
At the end of the period 13,196 14,969 2,595 2,531

Actuarial (gains) and losses for the year 2021 and 2020 comprised of the following items:

Retirement benefits Jubilee benefits
it € fhousands 2021 2020 2021 2020
Actuarial (gains) and losses ariging from changes in
demographic assumptions (3.834) 399 (822) 142
Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in financial
assumptions 84 45 16 44
Actuarial {(gains) and losses arising from experience
adiustments 1,977 {418) 997 151
Total actuarial (gains) and losses {1,773) 28 191 337

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the profit/loss for the period as personnel
expenses regarding provision for long-term employee retirement benefits:

in € thousands 2021 2020
Past service cost - -
Cuirent service cost 842 968
Actuarial (gains) and losses 191 1
Net henefit expense (Note 4) 1,033 1,305

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

2021 2020
Discount rate (% p.a.) 0.86 0.96
Future salary increases (%) 3.00 2.00-3.00
Mortality index (male) 0.05-2.37 0.06 - 2.44
Mortality index (female) 0.03-0.09 0.02-0.98

Other provisions
Greenhouse gas emissions

Based on the Slovak National Aliocation Plan the Company obtained quotas for greenhouse gas emission for
2021 in the amount of 1,221,957 tons of CO2{2020: 1,310,346 tons of CO2). The actual volume of emissions
released for 2021 was 2,243,561 tons of CO2 (2020: 2,193,994 tons of COz). In the financial statements as for
the year ended 31 December 2021 the Company created the provision in the amount of €55,678 thousand
(31 December 2020: €22,529 thousand).

The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statemenis. 30



SLOVNAFT, a.s.
Notes to the separate financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2021

21 Other non-current liabilities

in € thousands 2021 2020
QOther non-current non-financial liabilities

Govemment grants (Note 9.2) 8,623 9,432
Deferred compensation for property, piant and equipment 3,531 4,120
Other 819 468
“Total other non-current non-financial liabilities 12,973 14,020
Total other non-current liabilities o 12,973 14,020

22 Trade payables and other current liabilities

in € thousands 2021 2020
Trade payables and other current financial liabilities

Trade payables 582,089 348,192
Collateral received regarding derivative transactions 2,400 -
Ligbilities from matured unsettled derivative fransactions 1,570 679
liabilities to shareholders (dividands) 1,337 1,547
Cash collateral received 1,135 1,257
Other 1,139 939
Total trade payables and other current financial liahilities ] 590,570 352,614
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss - derivatives 26,707 20,521
Other current non-financial lighjlifies

Taxes, contributions payable, penalties 58,486 58,189
Amounts due fo employees 18,830 13,962
Advances from customers 7.435 5,336
Liabilities from loyaity scheme BONUS 5,230 5,770
Public heaith and social insurance 3,196 3,196
Other 1,134 ~ 784
Tetal other current non-financial liabilities 94,311 87,237
Total trade payables and other current liabilities 711,588 460,372

The social fund payable is included in the other financial liabilities. The creation and use of the social fund during the period are
shown in the table below:

in € thousands 2021 2020
At the beginning of the period 57 193
Legal creation through expenses 639 864
Use (517) (1,000}
At the end of the period 179 57

23 Financial instruments

3Accounfmg po!fc:es o

Classrf catron and measurements of f“ nancaa! mstruments

Financial assets and ﬁnanc;a! liabilities c:amed on the stafemeni of Fnanc:a! posmon :nc!ude cash and cash
equalents, marketable secunttes, frade -and- ‘other ‘accounts rece:vable and payable, .'ong—term rece:vab[es,

!oans, horrawings, mvesimenz‘s, and. bonds recervable and payabfe

Fmans:a! mstruments (mciudmg compound f:nanmaf msmzments) are classifi ed as assets !:ab:imes or eqwty in
accordance with the substance of the contractual. agreement Interest, dividends, gains, and losses relating to
a financial instrument classified as a ifabmty, are reported as expense of income as incurred. Distributions io
holders of financial insiruments classified as equity are: charged directly fo equity. In'case of compound financial
mstmments, the diability component is valued first, ‘with the equily component being determined as a residual
valug. Financial instruments are offsei when the Company has a legally enforceable nght o offs@t and mtends fo
sefile sitherona net basis or to realize the asset and sett!e the fiability simultaneously.

Based on resulfs of business model test and cash ﬁow charactenst:cs test, financial assets within the sc:ope of

IFRS 9 are classified as either financial assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, or financial assels af fair value through profit or loss. The entity can make an
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irrevocable election af inifial recognition to measure eqwry investments, which are not held for tradmg, at fa.'r value
rhrough other comprehens;ve income wrth only dfwdend income recognfzed in prof it or loss -

Fmanc:al assets measured at amortrzed cost e o R BRI A
Fmanc:ai assets measured at amomzad cost are those ﬂnanmal assets a‘hat are held w;th:n a busrness modei

_r*ha pnnctpai amount outstanding

F;nanc:al assets measured at amomzed cost are ally. racogn;zsd at fair value :nciudmg d:recz‘ly attnbutabie
.-transactaon cnsts After m:t.rai msasuremenz‘ fi nanc.'af as_ ts_ _ easured at arnort.rzed cost are subsaquentfy carned

a busmess model whoss Objecffve :s ach:aved[by both sollectmg contractual ‘cash flows and selﬁng 1 nanc:al
assafs and rhe contractuai ferms of the financ:al asset g:ve rise.on spec#‘ ed dates fo cash ﬂows ihat are sofely
' ' f oulst di X : : S

3accumuiated :n equny are reciassifed to prof“ it and !oss on a basrs rhat always rssufts in‘an. asset measured at
fair value: through other comprehensive income having the same effect o prof“ it and foss as.if it were maasured'
at amortized cost..Changes in fair.value of eqwty investments recogmzsd in other camprehensrve rncome are
never recycfed to profrt and Ioss even If the asset rs so!d or Jmparred . . L

'vered to tne counterpaﬂy -

Farr valus of f nanc;a] rnstrumenfs IS determmed by referance to quoted market pnces at tha c!oss of busmass on
the last day of the reporting period without any deduction for transaction costs. For investments where there is no
'quored market price, fair value is determined by reference fothe current. market value of another instrument which
is subsfannalbf ths same or IS ca!culatsd based an fhs axpeofed cash ﬂows of the underfymg net assef base of
rhe fnvestment RS _ .

Derecoamt.ron of ﬁnanc;al rnstruments

Tha darscognmon of aff fi nanc:af assef takes piace wnen z‘he Company no longsr conzrols tha contractua! nghts
that comprise the financial assei, ‘which is normalfy the ‘case when the instrument is sold, or all the cash flows
atributable fo the instrument are passed through to an independent ‘third party. When the Company .neither
transfers nor retains all the fisks and rewards of the financial asset and continues to control the transferred asset,
it recognizes its retained interést in the asset and a liability for the amaunts it may . havs fo pay. ananc:ai Hability
is derecognrzad whan the obliganon undar the Izabmzy is d:scharged or cancelfad or expfres

Danvat:va fmansral :nsfrumem‘s

The Company uses denvative ﬂnanc;al mstruments sucn as fonvard currency contracts to reduce n‘s nsks
associated with foreign cuirency fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized af fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered info and are subsequently remeasured af fair value.

Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as Jiabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gaing or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives ara taken direcﬂy to profitfioss for the pericd
as financial income or expense.
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Fair value of forward currency. contracts is calculated by reference to current fonvard exchange rates for confracts
;W;th srmr!ar matur;ty prof !es o : _ :

Imgafrment of i nanc:al assets ‘ ST SR o o
The. Company assesses at each end of fhe repcn‘mg psr:cd whether a 1 nancra! asset or group cf f nanc:ai assets
measured at amorfrzed cost or at fafr value through other. comprehensrve. mcome is :mpafred s .

As a genara! apprcach rmparrmsnt lossss on.a f nancral asset or group of fi nancfaf assets are recogmzed for
sxpected credn.‘ losses at an amount, equal to"- R

- 12-month sxpscted credit fosses (expecrsd crcdft losses that resu!t from those default evsnts on the f nancral
mstrument ihat are possrbls_wrihm 12 months aﬁ‘er ths repoﬁing date), or- RS

f = moum‘ squal--to fw‘l Irfet:me expected Iosses ;f the
d srgmf cantly since initial reccgnrt:on Wher: the credit risk of the
, ing date (in-which ‘caSe It can be assumed that credit risk on the fi nancial
_mstrumenf has ‘not- mcreased srgn:f‘ cant!y ‘since initial ) n)_.- q 2~month sxpected credif-losses can be
applred for the measurement. The Company: determines rgmfrcant increasein. credit risk in case of debt securities
: 'cred:t ratmg agency ratfngs As. there :s a rebuftable presumpfrcn that ths credit risk on a fi nancial asset

' ractual payments ‘are more than. 30 days past due

the credn‘ nsk srgmﬁcantiy mcreased in that fmancraf

'ch to rscogn:zs fulf Iffez‘:me expected losses fmm
:vab.'cs For aH other ﬁnancrai mstruments, gensral

appro chis apphsd L
Aneniity shall cognfze n prof:t or ioss as an. fmpafrm .gam or Icss, the amcum‘ of sxpscted credrt Icssss (or
-rcversa!) that is reqwrcd to: aoﬂust the lcss aflowance atihe. repcrfmg date. SRR S R

indspsndsntiy'o fthe two approaches mentroned abovs, rmpairmenf !osses reccgmzed where there is an objeci:ve
evidence on fmpafrmenr dueifoa !oss event and this Joss event signifi cantly impacts the estimated future cash
‘flows ‘of the financial asset.or group. of financial assets. These. are required to be assessed ona- case-by-case
‘basis, The maximum amount of rmpa:rmsnt accounted for by the Cornpany is 1 OOA of unsccured panf of the

fmancral assst Ths amcunt of logs is: rsccgmzed' in r_ _tafement of profit or foss.’

fiina subsequent perrod ‘the ‘amount of the ;mpafrment foss” decreases and thc- dscrease can be refated
objectrvsfy toan event occumngaftsr the. :mpa:rment wa
o . /.

S recogmzed ihe prewousfy recogn:zed rmpa:rmenr foss
s recognized in the statement of profit o loss, to- ths
2] zts-amorhzcd cost at the. reversal date 2 D

'Fa alaat:on of ﬁnancra! mstruments is. perform d - _ference to quoted market prfces or in. absence thcrccf
reflects the-market's or the management's estimate cn the future trend of key dnvers of such vaiues mcfudmg,
but not limited fo yield curves, forelgn exchange and risk-free interest rates.
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23.1 Reconciliation of financial instruments

Book value of financial instruments:

in € thousands Notes 2021 2020
Other non-current financial assets 12 550 450
Trade receivables 14 430,261 221,972
Other current financial assets 15 185,646 252,084
Cash and cash equivalents 16 40,731 26,238
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 657,888 500,744
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income -

equity instruments (Level 2} 2,370 2,370
Financial assets measured at fair vaiue through profit or loss - derivatives

(Level 2) 16 30,043 15,041
Financial assets measured at fair value 32413 17,411
Total financial assets 690,301 518,155
in € thousands Notes 2021 2020
Long-term debt, net of current portion 18.1 66,278 55,315
Trade payables and other current financial liabilities 22 580,570 352,614
Short-term debt 19.2 - 215,304
Current portion of long-term debt 19.1 14,566 13,654
Financial liabitities measured at amortized cost 671,404 636,887
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss — derivatives

{Level 2) 22 26,707 20,621
Financial liabilities measured at fair value 26,707 20,521
Total financial liabilities 698,111 657,408

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of ioans and receivables and financial liabilities valued at amortized cost does not significanily differ
from its book value due to shorl time to its maturity andfor due to relation to floating interest rates.

Revenues, expenses and gains or losses from financial instruments recognized in profitfloss for the period

(Loss)

Interest reversal of Net fee
2621 Net gains/ income/ loss from income/
in € thousends {losses) {expense) impairment {expense)
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 6,185 673 - (57)
Financiat assets measured at fair vaiue through other
comprehensive income ~ 890 - -
Financiat assets/liabiliies measured at fair value through
profit or loss (22,682) {2,013) - (2,745)
Financiaf abilities measured at amortized cost (13,150} - - -
Total {29,647) {450) - {2,802)

{Loss)/

Interest reversal of MNet fee
2020 Net gains/ income/ loss from income/
in € thousands {losses) {expense) impairment (expense)
Financial assets measured at amortized cost (4,649) 336 (282) {38)
Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - (10 -
Financial assets/liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss 11,865 - - -
Financlal liabilities measured at amortized cost 9430  (1,523) - {2,315)
Total 16,646 (1,187) (292) {2,353)
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23.2 Managing risks of financial instruments

Following risks are related to financial instruments held:

i} Credit risk,
i) Liquidity risk,
iii) Market risk, which includes:

« Interest rate risk,
e Foreign currency risk,
« Commodity risk.

Financial risk management function is centralized in the MOL Group. All risks are integrated and measured at the
MOL Group level using Value at Risk concept. As a general approach, the risk management considers the
business as well-balanced integrated portfolio and does not hedge particular elements of the commodity
exposure, except for hedge of change in fair value of crude oil during the refinery maintenance periods and hedge
of change in fair value of firm commitments for future purchase and sale of oil products.

The Company may enter into various types of forwards, swaps and options in managing its commodity, foreign
exchange and interest rate risk resulting from cash flows from business activities and financing arrangements. In
line with the Company's risk management policy, no speculative dealings are allowed. Any derivative transaction
the Company may enter is under ISDA {International Swaps and Derivatives Association) agreements.

For the purpose of commodity derivatives and trades with CO2 quotas, the Company agreed with MOL Commodity
Trading Kit. on system of posting of financial collateral which is updated on weekly bases.

iy Credifrisk

The Company provides a variety of customers with products and services, none of whom, based on volume and
creditworthiness, present significant credit risk, individually or aggregated. The Company's procedure is to ensure
that sales are made to customers with appropriate credit history and do not exceed an acceptable credit exposure
limit.

Book value of financial assets and nominal value of guarantees granted reflect estimated maximum exposure to
credit risk.

As at 31 December 2021 the Company recorded the financial assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired
whose terms have been renegotiated in amount of €97 thousand (31 December 2020: €329 thousand).

Credit limits are secured by insurance, obtained bank guarantees, bills of exchange, letters of credit, pledge on
financial assets, and property, plant and equipment. Nominal value of accepted guarantees related to loans and
receivables represented €142,770 thousand as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: €420,855 thousand).
Fair value of accepted guarantees does not significantly differ from its nominal value.

The Company obtained compensations for impaired financial assets from insurance companies and financial
institutions in the amount of €795 thousand in 2021 (2020: €1,260 thousand).

Analysis of trade receivables:

2021 Nominal Net book
in € thousands value Provisions valug
Not past due 416,677 109 415,568
Past due
Up to 30 days 12.538 7 12,531
From 31 to 90 days 739 - 739
From 91 to 180 days 363 - 363
From 181 fo 360 days 375 182 183
QOver 361 days 3,767 2,200 1,667
Total trade receivables 433459 2,498 430,961
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2020 Nominal Net bock
in € thousands vaiue Provisions value
Not past due 210,714 132 210,582
Past due
Up to 30 days 7.308 8 7,302
From 31 to 90 days 1,254 - 1,254
From 91 fo 180 days 1,120 - 1,120
From 181 to 360 days 665 400 265
Over 361 days 3,506 2,447 1,449
Total frade receivables 224,657 2,685 221,972

)  Liquidity risk

The Company’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents or have available funding through
an adequate number of credit facilities to cover the liquidity risk in accordance with its financing strategy.

The amounts of undrawn credit facilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Undrawn
2021 Totat credit Drawn Customs Other credit
in € theusands facilities loans  gquaranfees  guaraniees facilities
Long-term credit facilifies
Other 80,834 (80,834) - - -
Total long-term credit facilities 80,824 (80,834) - - -
Short-term gredit facilifies
Other 341,385 - {49,675) (5,997) 286,713
Total short-term credit facilities 341,385 " {49,675) (5,997) 285,713
Total credit facilities 422,219 {80,834) {49,675) (5,997) 285,713
Undrawn
2020 Total credit Drawn Customs Other credit
in € thousands facilities loans guarantees  guarantees facilities
Long-term credit facilities
QOther 68,969 {68,969) - - -
Total long-term credit facilities 68,969 (68,969) - - -
Short-term credit facllifies
Other 369,100 (215,268) (53,410) (6,071) 04,351
Total short-term credit facilities 369,160 {215,268) (53,410)  {6,071) 94,351
Total credit facilities 438,069 {284,237) (53,410) {6,071) 94,351

Of the undrawn credit facilities, the resources in the amount of €215,713 thousand as at 31 December 2021
(31 December 2020: €94,351 thousand) were uncommiited.

Analysis of liquidity risk:
Financial Financiat
Finangial assets Financial liabilities
assets measured at liabilities measured at
measured at fair value measured at fair value
2021 amortized through amortized through
in € thousands cost profit or loss cost profit or loss
On demand 48,930 - 6,848 -
Up to 1 month 288,034 3,489 308,736 2,147
From 1to 3 months 319,340 4,038 276,569 1,557
From 3 t¢ 12 months 897 22 516 11,658 23,003
From 11c 8 vears 687 - 38,439 -
Qver § years - - 27.840 -
Without maturity - - 1,314 -
Total 657,888 30,043 671,404 26,707
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Financial Financial

Financial assets Financial liabilities

assets measured at liabifities measured at

measured at fair value measured at fair value

2020 amortized through amortized through
in € thousands cost profit or loss cost profit or loss
On demand 35,034 - 17,274 -
Up to 1 month 136,555 7,401 409,896 6,539
From 1 to 3 months 412,045 276 122,326 6,859
From 3 to 12 months 216,660 7,274 30,762 7,123
From 1 to 5 years 450 - 28,404 -
QOver 5 years - - 26,011 -
_Without maturity - . 1,314 o
Total 500,744 15,041 636,887 20,521

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
represent capital instruments, which do not have determined maturity.

Maturity profile of the financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Trade Financial

payables liahilities

and other measured at

current fair value

2021 Long-term financial Short-term through
in € thousands debt liabilities debt profit or loss Total
On demand - 6,848 - - 6,848
Up to 1 month 3.270 305,616 - 2,147 311,033
From 1 to 3 months 703 275,863 - 1,657 278,123
From 3 ta 12 months 10,8486 929 - 23,003 34,778
From 1 fo 5 years 42,003 - - - 42,003
Over 5 years 31,814 - - - 31,814
Without maturity - 1,314 - - 1,314
Total 88,636 590,570 - 26,707 705,913

Trade Financial

payables liabilities

and other measured at

current fair value

2020 Long-term financial Short-term through
in € thousands debt liabilities debt profit or loss Total
On demand - 17,274 - - 17.274
Up to 1 month 3,087 211,587 195,304 6,539 416,527
From 1 fo 3 months 650 121,743 - 6,850 129,252
From 3 {0 12 months 10,238 686 20,000 7,123 38,047
From 1to 5 years 32,410 - - - 32,1190
QOver 5 years 31,735 - - - 31,738
Without maturity - 1,314 - - 1,314
Total 77,820 352,614 215,304 20,521 666,259

i) Market risks

Interest rate risk

The Company's policy is to ensure that no more than 50% of its exposure to changes in interest rates is on a fixed

rate basis.

The notes form an integral part of these separate financial statements.
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Sensitivity analysis of inferest rate risk:

2021 2020

Increase/ Impact on Increase/ lmpact on

(decrease) of profit before (decrease) of profit before

in € thousands interest rate (%) taxes interest rate (%) taxes
EURIBOR 1M (EUR} 0,25 1 0.25 (31)
EURIBOR 1M (EUR} {0.25) {n (0.25) 31
EURIBOR 3M (EUR} 0.26 114 0.25 18
EURIBOR 3M (EUR) {0.25) (114) {0.25) (18}
EURIBOR 6M (EUR) - - 0.25 (24}
EURIBOR 6M {EUR) - - {0.25) 24

The estimated impact on profit before taxes is disclosed for the period of next 12 months.

Statistical methods were used for calculation of estimated marginal values of interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Company may enter into various types of foreign exchange contracts in managing its foreign currency risk
resulting from cash flows from business activities and financing arrangements denominated in foreign currencies

or certain transactional exposures.

The Company has a net long USD operating cash flow position. The Company's trading with oif products gives
rise to a long USD cash flow exposure, while frading with crude oil gives rise to a short USD position.

The Company follows the basic economic currency risk management principle that the currency mix of the debt
portfolio should reflect its net operating cash flow position, constituting a natural hedge.

Sensitivity analysis of foreign currency risk:

2021 2020

Increase/ Impact Increase/ impact

(decrease) on profit {decrease) on profit

of exchange before of exchange before

in € thousands rate %) taxes rate (%) taxes
usDh 56 (18,243) 5.4 (9,245)
ush {5.0) 16,407 (4.7) 8,383
HUF 57 (48) 5.8 {32)
HUF ()] 43 (5.2) 29
CZK 4.2 2,798 6.1 2,392
CZK (3.9} (2,581) {5.4} (2,133}
PLN 4.5 1,556 4.8 529
PLN (4.2) (1,426} (4.2} {485)

The estimated impact on profit before taxes is disclosed for the period of next 12 months.

Statistical methods were used for calculation of estimated marginat values of exchange rates.

Commodity risk

The Company is exposed to commodity price risk on both the purchasing side and the sales side. The main
commodity risks of the Company are the short crude ofl position, long refinery margin position and long
petrochemical margin position.

The Company uses short term commodity swap transactions for hedging commodily risk. The commodity swap

transactions were fraded with related MOL Commodity Trading Kft. The Company does not apply hedge
accounting for these transactions.
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23.3 Capital management

Capital of the Company is managed at the MOL Group level. The primary objective of the MOL Groups' capital
management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximize shareholder value.

The MOL Group manages its capital structure and adjusts it in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the dividend payment fo shareholders may be adjusted, capital returned
to sharehoiders or new shares issued.

The MOL Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net
debt equals to interest-bearing loans less cash and cash equivalents,

The structure of capital and net debt and gearing ratio for the Company is as follows:

in € thousands 2021 2020
Long-term debt, net of current porticn 66,278 55,315
Short-term debt - 215,304
Current portion of iong-term debt 14,556 13,654
Less: cash and cash equivalents } {40,731) (26,238)
Net debt R 40,103 258,035
Equity 1,693,534 1,509,369
Capital and net debt 1,733,637 1,767,404
Gearing ratio (%) 2.3 14.60

24 Commitments and contingent Habilities

Accountmg polic.-es

Contmgent assets are nor recogmzed in the separate fmanc:ai statements but disclosed in the Notes when an
inflow . of -economic. benefits -is probabfe Contingent . liabilities -are not recognized in the separate financial
statements unless: ‘they are acqu;red in"a- business combination. They are d:sciosed m the Notes un!ess the
.possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic:benefits is remote. : : .

Guarantees

The total value of guarantees granted as at 31 December 2021 is €1,780 thousand {31 December 2020: €2,330
thousand).

The guarantees granted are as follows:

2021
Guarantee
Debtor Purpose Valid until € thousands
SWSspol.sro. customs guarantee indefinite period 1,650
SLOVNAFT MONTAZE A OPRAVY as. trade payables December 2022 130
2020
Guarantee
Dehbtor Purpose Valid until € thousands
SWS spol. s r.o. ) customs guarantee indefinite period 2,200
SLOVNAFT MONTAZE A OPRAVY as. frade payables December 2022 130

Capital and contractual commitments

The total value of capital commitments as at 31 December 2021 is €67,409 thousand (31 December 2020:
€47 083 thousand) and relates to obligations o purchase property, plant and equipment in the amount of €65,683
thousand (31 December 2020: €44,473 thousand) and Intangible assets in the amount of €2,326 thousand
(31 December 2020: €2,610 thousand). The value of capital commitments includes the liability for the purchase
of L UKOIL filling stations in the Slovak Republic.
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Other inspections

The Company is subject to various inspections performed by the state authorities. Although the Company cannot
exclude that any of these proceedings discovers irregularities in its activities based on which the Company could
be penalized, the management cannot determine any amount for which a provision should be recognized because
of such proceedings. Due to that reason, there was no provision booked for that purpose as at 31 December
2021.

Environmental liabilities

The Company’s operations are subject to the risk of liability arising from environmental damage or pollution and
the cost of any associated remedial work. The Company is currently responsible for significant remediation of past
environmental damage relating to its operations. Accordingly, the Company has established a provision of
€50,893 thousand for the estimated cost as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: €46,657 thousand) for
probable and quantifiable costs of rectifying past environmentat damage (Note 20). Although the management
believes that these provisions are sufficient to satisfy such requirements to the extent that the related costs are
reasonably estimable, future regulatory developments or differences between known environmental conditions
and actual conditions could cause a revaluation of these estimates.

25 Earnings per share

Accounting policies .~ -

Basic ‘eamings. per share are calculated by vafd;g .t_f?é ‘profitfioss for the. _p_éribd _j-ajz:‘:tfibgtébié_" to_ordinary
shareholders (profivioss for the period less dividends on preference shares) by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding Quring the Perio, 0 i s i T B e

The Company does not have any potential ordinary shares and therefore the diluted eamnings per share are the
same as the basic earnings per share.

2024 2020
Profitf{loss) for the period (€ thousands) 252,764 (81,886)
Weighted average number of shares 20,625,229 20,625,229
Basic/diluted earningsi(ioss) per share (€) 12.26 (3.97)

26 Related party transactions

The Company is controlled by MOL Nyrt. Following the integration process within the MOL Group the Company
undertook significant transactions with other companles within the MOL Group.

Mr. Marek Senkovit, CEO of the Company, is a member of the Board of Directors at Agentira pre nidzové zdsoby
ropy a ropnych vyrobkov.

Companies reported as other related parties are under the controlling influence of the key management members.
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The transactions with related parties!

in € thouysands 2021 2020
Sales - products, goods and materials

SLOVNAFT Group 276,359 133,316
MOL Group {(wfo SLOVNAFT Group companies) 1,364,458 897,026
Asscciated companies 2,584 2,485
Agentura pre nudzové zasoby ropy a ropnych vyrobkov 29,854 31,795
Other related parties 95 65
Salas - services and other operating revenues

SLOVNAFT Group 4,476 4,380
MOL. Group (w/o SLOVNAFT Group companies) 12,469 21,640
Associated companies 77 82
Agentura pre nidzové zasoby ropy a ropnych vyrobkov - 996
Other refated parties 4 4
Sales - financial assets measured af fair value through other comprehensive income

MOL Group - 29
Interest revenue

SLOVNAFT Group 11 89
MOL Group {wlo SLOVNAFT Group companies) 627 173
Assocciated companies 23 46
Other finance revenues

SLOVNAFT Group - 24
Dividends received

SLOVNAFT Group 19,353 711
MOL Group (w/o SLOVNAFT Group companies) 890 -

Associated companies 52,462 270
in € thousands 2021 2020
Purchases - raw materials, goods and energy

SLOVNAFT Group 180 638
MOL Group (wio SLOVNAFT Group companies} 440,864 237,624
Associated companies 77,018 43,600
Agentlra pre nlidzové zasoby ropy a ropnych vyrobkov 29,877 31,710
Purchases - services and other operating expenses

SLOVNAFT Group 105,212 093,048
MOL Group (w/o SLOVNAFT Group companies) 25317 9,907
Associated companies 15 15
Agentira pre nadzové zasoby rapy a ropnych vyrobkov 53,079 52,531

Other related parties 64 242
Purchases - property, plant and equipment

SLOVNAFT Group 19,226 21,430
MOL. Group (wfo SLOVNAFT Group companigs) 14,589 13,760
Purchases - infangible assets

SLOVNAFT Group 160 20
MOL Group {w/o SLOVNAFT Group companies) 27,47 17,378
Interest expense

MOL. Group {w/o SLOVNAFT Group companies) 310 92
Agsociated companies 158 180
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in € thousands 2021 2020
Receivables

SLOVNAFT Group 26,343 11,080
MOL. Group (w/o SLOVNAFT Group companies) 201,180 76,651
Associated companies 1,237 1,188
Agentlira pre nidzové zasoby ropy a ropnych vyrobkov 1 -
Other related parties 10 5
Loans granted

SI.OVNAFT Group (Note 12 and 15) 553 482
MOL Group {w/o SLOVNAFT Group companies) (Note 15) 184,443 242,498
Associated companies (Note 12) - 2,233
Payables

SLOVNAFT Group 27,761 25,398
MOL Group (w/o SLOVNAFT Group companies) 121,790 71,238
Associated companies 5,369 5,094
Agentlra pre nddzové zasoby ropy a ropnych vyrobkoy 4,257 4,129
Other related parties 9 31
Loans received

Associated companies 3,205 3,694
MOL Group {w/o SLOVNAFT Group companies} 494 641

Statutory boards of the Company

According to an extract from the Commercial Register of District Court in Bratistava | as at 31 December 2021 the

Company's statuiory boards had the following composition:

The Board of Directors: Oszkar Vilagi, Chairman of the Board

Gabriel Szabd

Marek Senkovié
Ferenc Horvath

Zsolt Huff

Timea Reicher
Zsuzsanna Eva Orfutay
Zsolt Pethd

The Supervisory Board: Zoltan Aldott, Chairman of the Board

Akos Székely
Richard Austen
Slavomir Hatina
Matig Horvath
Martina Darnadiova

Emoluments of the members of the Board of Directors ang the Supervisory Board

No remuneration was paid to the members of the Board of Directors in 2021 (2020: €24 thousand). The total
remuneration of members of the Supervisory Board amounted to €174 thousand in 2021 (2020: €174 thousand).

Key management compensation

in € thousands 2021 2020
Salaries 803 580
Legat and voluntary retirement contributions 80 80
Puilic health insurance 80 96
Other social insurance 73 24
Qther personnel expenses 120 120
Provision for retirement and jubilee benefits {148} {63)
Expenses of share-based payments 185 (178)
Jotal 1,203 659
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Detalls of the share option rights granted to key members of management during the period are as follows:

2021 2020

Weighted Weighted
Shares average average
in option exercise price Shares exercise price
rights per share  in option rights per share

number number
of shares € of shares €
Quitstanding at the beginning of the period 172,720 8.30 171,200 8.00
Granted during the period 20,000 7.91 54,320 8.0
Forfeited during the period {16,803) 7.91 - -
Exercised during the period - - (52,800) 4.57
Expired during the periad {59,200) 8.42 - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 116,717 - 8.10 172,720 8.30
Exercisable at the end of the period 62,160 8.27 59,200 8.51

Long-term incentive schemes for management

A long-term incentive scheme for management consists of long-term interest in increase of the parent company's
MOL. Nyrt. share price (Note 4).

General incentive schemes for management

The incentive aim involves the Company and organizational level financial and operational targets, evaluation of
the contribution to the strategic goals of the Company and determined individual tasks in the Performance
Management System (PMS). The incentives for the year 2021 will be paid to managers based on the evaluation
of indicators and tasks defined in the individual agreements.

Loans granted

No loans have been granted to key management and members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory
Board.

27 Events after the reporting period

Russia — Ukraine conflict

The economic consequences of Russia's invasion of Ukraine that commenced on 24 February 2022 may affect
the Company. Management is continuously investigating and assessing the possible effects of the current
geopolitical situation, international sanctions and other possible limitations on the supply chain and business
activiies. The Company has made decisions in its credit policy to minimize the exposure.

The Company is exposed to risk related to the physical flow of crude oil through the transportatior: system in
Russia and Ukraine. To date, the physical flow of the crude oil has not been restricted. Management is taking
actions to manage the risk of possible crude oil supply disruption, including consideration of using alternative
supply routes of sufficient capacity. Stovnaft has access fo state reserves which enables it io supply its markets
for more than 90 days even if all crude ofif transportation is shut down.
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